
Agenda subject to change prior to meeting 
 

- Discussio 
 
 

CITY OF AUBURN 
MAYOR and CITY COUNCIL  

August 14, 2025 
6:00 PM 

Council Chambers 
1 Auburn Way 

Auburn, GA 30011 
 
INVOCATION 
 
PLEDGE 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. PL25-0009- HPC Investments, LLC Overlay Architectural Review- Sarah McQuade 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Consent Agenda 

a. Council Business Meeting Minutes- July 10, 2025 
b. Council Workshop Meeting Minutes- July 24, 2025 
c. Council Special Called Meeting Minutes- August 4, 2025 
d. Cold Planer Attachment for Mini Excavator- Iris Akridge 
e. Renewal of the City of Civility Resolution #03-025 - Michael Parks 
f. Engineering Oversite and Construction Contract Administration for the Raw Water 

Storage Pond- Michael Parks 
g. Construction Phase Engineering Services for Phase B Raw Waters Pipeline and Rock 

Creek Intakes #1 and #2- Michael Parks 
 
2. FPR25-001 Kingston Cove Final Plat- Sarah McQuade 
3. PL25-0009- HPC Investments, LLC Overlay Architectural Review- Sarah McQuade 
4.   Renewal of Contract for SCADA system- Iris Akridge 
5.  Budget Amendment for Kubota Labor Cost- Iris Akridge 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS  
 
ADJOURN 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



PUBLIC HEARING &
AGENDA ITEM: 3 

TO: 

FROM:  

DATE: 

City of Auburn Mayor and City Council 

Sarah McQuade 
City Planner  

August 8, 2025 

PURPOSE: Overlay Architectural Approval (OAR) request for the development 
of six (6) town houses in the ADOD: Auburn Downtown Overlay District.  

BACKGROUND: The applicant is requesting approval to construct one, six-unit 
town house building in the ADOD in the Arts and Crafts (Craftsman) style at the 
northeastern corner of 6th St and 6th Ave.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Denial. 

FUNDING: N/A 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



City Council Work Shop Date: July 24, 2025         | PL25-0009 
City Council Public Hearing Date: August 14, 2025  

   
 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
CITY OF AUBURN 

1 Auburn Way 
AUBURN, GA 30011 

PHONE: 770-963-4002 
www.cityofauburn-ga.org 

 

Staff Report for Auburn Downtown Overlay District Architectural Overlay Review 
 

CASE NUMBER:    PL25-0009 

ZONING:     Downtown Overlay District (ADOD) 

LOCATION:     0 6th Street 

PARCEL NUMBER:    A portion of AU11 121 

SITE ACREAGE:     2.02 +/- acres 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:   Six (6) single-family attached dwellings (townhomes)    

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT MAP:  Mixed Use 

APPLICANT: HBC Investments, LLC c/o William J. Diehl, Thompson, 

O’Brien, Kappler & Nasuti, PC 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 

The applicant proposes the development of a six (6) unit townhouse building on a site in the Auburn 
Downtown Overlay District (ADOD). Pursuant to Sec. 17.91.080 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Mayor and 
City Council of Auburn must review each ADOD development application for compliance with District 
regulations.  

The proposed dwellings would front 6th Avenue, equipped with two-car garages served by a rear alley. 
The Application does not indicate whether each residence would be individually platted (fee-simple), or if 
the completed development would remain under single ownership. The proposed rear alley is 
conceptualized to begin at 6th Street and dead-end on site. The subject parcel totals 2.02 +/- acres, but 
the application indicates that townhome development would be confined to 0.59 acres at the site’s 
southern end; the balance of the property would remained undeveloped if the application is approved as 
presented.  The Application does not provide any information about the future use of the balance of the 
property.  

According to the submittal, each dwelling would measure two stories tall with 1,968 square feet of heated 
floor area, equipped with a front porch no less than 30 square feet. The residences are proposed to be 
“Arts and Crafts” (craftsman) style, with “naturally textured siding,” “exposed roof rafters with long 
overhanging eaves,” and “changes in the masonry materials and colors of the homes.” A seven (7) foot 
planting zone, five (5) foot sidewalk, and a six (6) foot Supplemental Zone would be provided along 6th 
Avenue and 6th Street per the application.  

Pursuant to Table 17.91.044, Downtown Streetscape Standards, staff categorize both 6th Avenue and 6th 
Street as “Downtown Road Type 2 (D2).” This road type reflects local thoroughfares that provide access to 

http://www.cityofauburn-ga.org/


City Council Work Shop Date: July 24, 2025         | PL25-0009 
City Council Public Hearing Date: August 14, 2025  

   
 

 

local goods and services. Both streets directly connect the development site to local commercial, civic, 
and/or institutional land uses, supporting this categorization. The application identifies both streets as 
“Downtown Road Type 1,” but no source or justification for this is provided. 

D2 roadways shall be equipped with a planting zone no less than seven (7) feet in depth, a sidewalk zone 
and no less than six (6) feet in depth (includes a six (6) foot sidewalk), and a supplemental zone no less 
than six (6) feet in depth. To meet streetscape and setback requirements, the property owner may be 
required to dedicate right-of-way to the City; this would be administered during the permitting process if 
council approves the subject request. 

SITE HISTORY: 

The subject site measures 2.02 +/- acres and is zoned Downtown Overlay District (ADOD). Currently, it’s 
vacant and vegetated. In 2017, a single-family house that formerly existed on the site was demolished; 
remnants of the driveway would be removed during site development.  

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMENTS: 

Pursuant to Sec. 17.91.080.B, the Mayor and City Council of Auburn shall review this development 
application for compliance with all requirements of the Auburn Downtown Overlay District based in part 
on the criteria outlined herein. Upon decision by the governing body that the proposal complies with said 
requirements, the applicant may begin development after obtaining the appropriate permit(s). 

The Overlay Review Criteria are provided below. Language in bold is from the City of Auburn Zoning 
Ordinance. Bulleted information that is not bolded are factors known to staff that may apply to the 
Ordinance criteria. 

a. Applicant submittal includes a project narrative.  
• Yes, the submittal includes a project narrative. 

b. Applicant has submitted a conceptual plan showing all proposed buildings, site 
requirements, and other information pertinent to the development of the site.  
• The submitted plan does not currently reflect the entirety of the subject property. 

o Approximately 1.43 +/- acres of the subject property are not included in the 
conceptual plan, and it is unclear if the remainder of the site is to remain 
undeveloped or be developed in the future. Without this information staff is unable 
to fully assess the overall impacts of the proposed development or determine 
whether the proposal is aligned with adopted city policy documents and long-term 
vision for the area.  

c. Elevation drawings submitted shall include dimensions of all sides of existing and proposed 
structures. Architectural elevations and treatments illustrating the architectural finish of the 
structures.  
• The applicant has provided elevation renderings of the front and rear of the proposed 

townhouse building.  
o However, renderings of the building sides are absent. 



City Council Work Shop Date: July 24, 2025         | PL25-0009 
City Council Public Hearing Date: August 14, 2025  

   
 

 

 
d. Applicant has included exterior finish material selections for all relevant structures to 

comply with the requirements of Chapter 17.91 Auburn Downtown Overlay District.  
• The applicant has provided exterior finish material selections; however, not all details have 

been addressed. 
o It is unclear which material(s) would be used to face exposed foundation walls on 

the building sides. 

e. Applicant has submitted sign plans and landscape plans in accordance with this Chapter 
17.91 Auburn Downtown Overlay District.  
• The applicant does not intend to install any signage as part of this proposal. 
• The applicant has submitted a landscape plan; however it differs significantly from the 

conceptual site plan and does not appear to accurately reflect the proposed development. 
o The conceptual plan depicts a narrow landscape strip with sparse row of trees 

between the street and the sidewalk, lacking detail and showing minimal space 
between the sidewalk and the town house porches. 

o In contrast, the submitted landscape plan shows trees planted between the sidewalk 
and town house porches, suggesting a greater setback than indicated in the 
conceptual site plan. The plan also depicts the town houses as being front-loaded, 
which is inconsistent with the proposal for a rear-loaded townhouse building served 
by a private alley.  

f. Applicant submittal includes photos of neighboring properties to ensure compatibility with 
the proposed design.  
• The applicant has not provided photos of neighboring properties or information to ensure 

design compatibility. 
o Neighboring properties are used for single-family residential and retail (including a 

gasoline station) 

g. Applicant shall provide any other information deemed necessary by the City Planner, or their 
designee to evaluate the appearance of the proposed site and its structures.  
• The Community Development Department does not request additional information from the 

applicant at this time. 

h. Property owned by the City or any Authority thereof shall be exempt from the Plan and 
Review process described herein.  

• The subject property is owned privately; therefore, it’s not subject to any exemptions. 
 
In addition to the Overlay Review Criteria provided above, the submittal has been reviewed for general 
compliance with the requirements of Sec. 17.91 of the Zoning Ordinance, which establishes the Auburn 
Downtown Overlay District. Staff has identified the following potential Code deficiencies: 

1. Sec. 17.91.041.B.a.iii.1 governs the massing and composition of Arts and Crafts (Craftsman) 
residential structures, and commands they “follow a one to one and one-half story structure 
height.” 



City Council Work Shop Date: July 24, 2025         | PL25-0009 
City Council Public Hearing Date: August 14, 2025  

   
 

 

a. The proposed townhouse building would measure two stories, which is not consistent with 
the Code requirement. 

i. Craftsman buildings “shall follow a one to one and one-half story structure height.” 
b. Article 17.91.041.B.a.iii.2. states that “stone, brick, and/or stucco shall serve primarily as 

accent materials to achieve visual interest.”  
i. The porch columns for all units make use of masonry materials, but not to the 

extent of creating visual interest.  
ii. The use of different siding styles and patterns for the porch gables, or delineating 

masses with brick or masonry façades, would better embody the City’s vision and 
intent for development in the ADOD.  

c. The wooden columns and exposed rafters with long overhanging eaves are characteristic 
features of the Craftsman style. To further enhance the overall aesthetics, incorporating 
additional details, such as decorative brackets, may bring greater depth and refinement.  

d. The elevations and drawings provided are not sufficient to verify the angle of the pitched 
roof. The Craftsman style usually employs a low-pitched roof, often at 18.4 to 26.6 degrees. 

e. The proposed building massing and composition may be approved by the Mayor and City 
Council as an alternative design. 
 

2. Sec. 17.91.041.B.a.v allows for single-family façade style and building design alternatives as 
approved by the Mayor and City Council. This mechanism, at the discretion of the Mayor and City 
Council, allows for building facades and styles other than Victorian Queen Anne, Victorian Folk, 
Arts and Crafts (Craftsman), and Art Deco. Staff determines that the proposed townhouse building 
does not meet any of the four Codified styles; therefore, it is subject to discretionary approval. 

a. The façade variations provided by the applicant are surface level, and do not complement 
the aesthetic vision of the City.  

i. While the submitted elevations incorporate several different stylistic elements, the 
limited massing variation results in a composition which appears somewhat 
uniform. The proposed color pallet adds visual contrast, however the inclusion of 
more distinct material changes could help reinforce a cohesive architectural identity 
more aligned with the City vision. 

ii. Aligning more closely with one of the codified architectural styles, or drawing 
stronger influence from a single historic style, would enhance compatibility with the 
historic character of the area.  

3. Sec 17.91.044 governs streetscape requirements; the subject development fronts two roadways 
classified as Downtown Road Type 2 (D2).  

a. The sidewalk widths must be no less than six (6) feet; the width of the proposed sidewalks 
along the development frontages are five (5) feet wide. 

LIVABLE CENTERS INITIATIVE STUDY, 2020 (LCI): 

The development site is located within the area studied in the City’s 2020 Livable Centers Initiative (LCI) 
Plan, which serves as a policy guide for future development in the City core, including the subject site. 
While the LCI is not a regulatory document, the Mayor and City Council may consider its 



City Council Work Shop Date: July 24, 2025         | PL25-0009 
City Council Public Hearing Date: August 14, 2025  

   
 

 

recommendations when evaluating development proposals. 

The LCI concept plan (pg. 77) suggests the subject site be split between retail (north) and townhouse 
development (south). More specifically, the area is highlighted as key opportunity 19.a (pgs. 84-85), which 
envisions “infill-townhouses (zero lot line development)” along with potentially “23 townhouses and 1 
detached cottage” and “16,000 [square feet] of infill retail.” The plan also recommends a multi-use trail 
corridor as and on-street parallel parking as part of the envisioned streetscape.  

While not in violation of zoning regulations, the current proposal, of one townhouse building without the 
incorporation of retail, trail infrastructure, or on-street parking, does not align with the intent of the LCI 
concept plan and recommendations or the City’s long-term vision. 

DEPARTMENT ANALYSIS: 

The subject proposal is for the development 0.59 +/- acres of a larger 2.02 +/- acre parcel containing one 
building of six (6) townhomes. The programming for the remaining 1.43 +/- is unknown. Attached single-
family housing is a permitted land use in the ADOD. The local Future Land Use Designation (FLU) is Mixed 
Use, which promotes locally blended land uses. Residential development is envisioned at around six (6) 
dwelling units per acre, with lots measuring 5,000 to 10,000 square feet in land area. The 0.59-acre area 
subject to development would have a density of 10.17 dwelling units per acre. Residential lot sizes are 
unspecified; the applicant has not provided whether residences would be platted individually (fee-simple) 
or owned collectively (one owner). 

As part of the required application materials, the applicant has included a project narrative, conceptual plan, 
elevation drawings and exterior finish materials selections. The submitted elevation drawings are incomplete 
as they do not provide elevation of the buildings’ sides. The applicant has not provided photographs of 
neighboring properties as required pursuant to Sec. 17.91.080.B.  
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

In accordance with the review procedure established in Sec. 17.91.080, and the general provisions of Sec. 
17.91, staff finds the application is not compliant with the requirements of the Auburn Downtown 
Overlay District. Staff recommends rejection of the subject Overlay Architectural Review request, as the 
proposal is not aligned with the single-family residential development standards of Sec. 17.91.041 and 
several core elements are missing from subject application. 
 
However, should the City Council find subject OAR request PL25-0009 to be compliant, staff recommends 
the following stipulations be enforced upon the site and adopted as part of the approval: 
 

1. A continuous sidewalk no less than six (6) feet in width shall be constructed along the entire 
frontage of the subject 2.02-acre parcel. 

2. The property owner shall dedicate, to the City of Auburn, the right-of-way necessary to meet 
Streetscape requirements, pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Sec. 17.91.044.  

3. The applicant shall resubmit building elevations and renderings to the Community Development 
Department for review that depict the following: 

a. No less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the front and side facades of the building shall 
consist of brick or stone. 



City Council Work Shop Date: July 24, 2025         | PL25-0009 
City Council Public Hearing Date: August 14, 2025  

   
 

 

b. No townhouse unit shall bear an overly similar front or rear exterior color or appearance 
when compared to any abutting townhouse unit. 

4. The applicant shall submit an updated tree and landscaping plan to the Community Development 
Department for review. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Work Shop Date: July 24, 2025         | PL25-0009 
City Council Public Hearing Date: August 14, 2025  

   
 

 

 
 
Conceptual Plan: 

 



City Council Work Shop Date: July 24, 2025         | PL25-0009 
City Council Public Hearing Date: August 14, 2025  

   
 

 

 

 
Floor Plan: 

  



City Council Work Shop Date: July 24, 2025         | PL25-0009 
City Council Public Hearing Date: August 14, 2025  

   
 

 

 
Elevation Drawings: 

 
 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

CITY OF AUBURN 

1369 FOURTH AVENUE 

AUBURN, GA 30011 

(770) 963-4002 

www.cityofauburn-ga.org 

 

OAR #: __________________ 

 

DOWNTOWN AUBURN OVERLAY DISTRICT 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 

In accordance with provisions of the Auburn Downtown Overlay District regulations, new buildings, exterior 

improvements to existing buildings, landscaping, signage, and site planning must be approved by the Auburn 

Planning and Zoning Commission before issuance of a building permit. 

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: 1 HARD COPY AND/OR DIGITAL COPIES OF EXTERIOR VIEWS, CONCEPT 

DRAWINGS, PHOTOS, LANDSCAPE PLAN, SITE PLAN, OR COLOR SAMPLES. 

DATE: ______2/28/25__________ 

 

APPLICANT NAME: HPC Investments, LLC c/o William J. Diehl, Thompson, O’Brien, Kappler & Nasuti, PC    

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 0 6th Street, Auburn, Georgia           

 

PHONE: 404-545-4371    EMAIL: wdiehl@tokn.com 

 

PROPERTY OWNER: HPC Investments, LLC          

    

 

ADDRESS: 5615 Golf Club, Drive, Braselton, GA          

   

 

PHONE: ___770-925-0111__________________ EMAIL: _______________WDiehl@TOKN.COM_____________________________ 

 

IMPROVEMENT TYPE: (Check all that apply) 

___X_____ New Building          _________ Existing Building            __________ Site Dev.        _____________ Sign 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  

Development of a six (6) unit townhome development on a .59 acre site.        

                

                
     

    PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION HEARING DATE: __________________________ 1361 FOURTH AVE (COUNCIL CHAMBERS) 

    RECOMMENDATION:  ______________ APPROVAL      _______________ APPROVAL W/ CONDITIONS        ______________ DENIAL 

    CONDITIONS: ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

                             ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

    REVIEW COMPLETED: __________________          SIGNATURE: ________________________________________________________ 
 

http://www.cityofauburn-ga.org/


 

  
 
 

 

Thompson, O’Brien, Kappler & Nasuti, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

William J. Diehl 
wdiehl@tokn.com 

Phone: 770-925-0111 

 
2 Sun Court | Suite 400 | Peachtree Corners, Georgia | 30092 | 770.925.0111 | 770.925.8597 fax | www.tokn.com 

 

March 12, 2025 

Via Submission to the Department of Community Development 

Mayor and Council of the City of Auburn 

1 Auburn Way 

Auburn, Georgia 30011 

 

RE: Project Narrative for Downtown Auburn Overlay District Architectural Review 

concerning a 59-acre portion of the parcel commonly known as 0 6th Street, 

Barrow County Parcel Identification Number: AU11 121 (the “Property”) 

Mayor and City Council, 

This office represents Chirs and Amber Halper and their company HBC Investments, LLC (the 

“Halpers”) in connection with development requests and entitlements concerning the Property 

referenced above. The Property is an undeveloped lot which previously contained a dilapidated 

home and now is primed for redevelopment consistent with the City’s plans and zoning ordinance. 

The submitted plan envisions the revitalization of this empty lot and the implementation of the 

City’s long-term plans, as demonstrated in the City’s Livable Centers Initiative (“LCI”) and its 

Comprehensive Plan (“Comp. Plan”).  

The Property is located within the Auburn Downtown Overlay District (“ADOD”), recently 

adopted by the City Council. This narrative is submitted in connection with that newly adopted 

ordinance. We seek plan review and approval by the City Council pursuant to Section 17.91.080. 

The ADOD was recently created to modernize the City’s development code and to ensure that 

Auburn’s vision for downtown development is implemented through the zoning ordinance. Of 

particular importance to this proposal, the ADOD set a high-standard for residential development; 

a standard that is reflected in development’s commitment to walkability, traditional streetscapes, 

and quality architecture.  

This project is consistent with that high standard. It envisions the development of six (6) townhome 

units along a .59 acre portion on the Northeast corner of 6th Street and 6th Avenue.  These homes 

are front facing (rear garage) with landscaping and streetscape improvements, resulting in an 

attractive product that addresses and expands pedestrian access, while increasing connectivity 

between commercial areas and other existing single-family communities.  

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY’S ADOD STANDARDS 



 
 
 
 
ADOD Project Narrative 
0 6th Street, Auburn GA   
March 13, 2025 
Page 2 of 5 

 

   
 

The City’s ADOD ordinance imposes a superseding zoning regulation upon properties located 

within the district, allowing for a variety of commercial and residential uses within the district. 

The district’s stated purpose is to “strike a balance between concerning the rich historical fabric of 

the community while facilitating innovative and sustainable development.” Code of Ordinances § 

17.91.010.  

Among the permitted uses are single family, attached dwellings (i.e., townhomes), as are 

envisioned in this Application. Thus, the use and intensity of development is compliant with the 

zoning overlay. The ADOD also imposes architectural and streetscape requirements.1 The 

development plan submitted with this narrative meets those requirements and further detail on that 

conformance is provided in the following subsections: 

A. Architectural Requirements 

Single-family residential architectural requirements within the ADOD are provided in section 

17.91.041. The code requires front facades to be constructed in one of four architectural styles and 

the facades here meet the requirements of the Arts and Craft style: having rectangular floor plans 

and simple structure heights. The elevations show a mixture of materials with naturally textured 

siding (cement-fiber boards cast with wood grain) being the primary material and with masonry 

materials used in the porch’s column bases as architecturally appropriate accents. Home colors 

will be within the Sherwin Williams “Craftsman” color palate.2 The homes’ porches are the most 

prominent feature of the front façade and its details are styled in the traditional, craftsman style by 

constructing strong and simple wooden columns on brick bases and having exposed roof rafters 

with long overhanging eaves.  

The elevations meet the exterior finish materials standards. All brick is installed at full or half-

depth; no vinyl siding nor metal sheeting is used.  

Further, the homes will provide private outdoor space, with a minimum 30 square foot porch. 

Architectural projections are provided by the craftsman-styled porches. Gables on the home are 

varied as the topography slops to the southeast, thereby breaking up the facades and minimizing 

massing of facades. Variations in the façade will be provided through changes in the masonry 

materials and colors of the homes. Colors will vary between the homes with one color not being 

used more than twice.  Finally, the homes will not exceed the 10-foot setback maximum.  

 
1 The Property is exempt from Greenspace requirements per Section 17.91.044(E)(1).  
2 https://www.sherwin-williams.com/en-us/color/color-collections/architectural-paint-colors/craftsman-design-
exterior-paint-colors  

https://www.sherwin-williams.com/en-us/color/color-collections/architectural-paint-colors/craftsman-design-exterior-paint-colors
https://www.sherwin-williams.com/en-us/color/color-collections/architectural-paint-colors/craftsman-design-exterior-paint-colors


 
 
 
 
ADOD Project Narrative 
0 6th Street, Auburn GA   
March 13, 2025 
Page 3 of 5 

 

   
 

 

B. Streetscape Requirements 

The ADOD’s streetscape requirements are set forth Section 17.91.004. Both 6th Street and 6th 

Avenue are classified as Downtown Road Type 1. The site plan details that the development meets 

the Planting Zone Width of 7 feet, Sidewalk Width of 5 feet, and a minimum 6-foot Supplemental 

Zone Width.  

The Planting Zone contains a mixture of overstory street-trees and acorn streetlights. Sidewalks 

are continuous and run along the corner lot, up and down 6th Street and 6th Avenue, where currently 

no sidewalk exists. A nearly 10-foot supplemental zone exists between the sidewalk and the front 

facades of the home. The supplemental zones will be landscaped and will contain porch 

encroachments permitted by the zoning ordinance. On the 6th Street side of the development, where 

the side elevation is most visible from the street, landscaping and trees will be planted to address 

any massing of materials and to provide continuity between the front facades. The effect of the 

landscaping and porch layouts is to create a community-oriented style of the development that 

lends itself to neighbor-connectivity, by situating the homes’ porches within a pedestrian friendly 

environment.  

Compliance with the City’s Long-term Planning Visions 

Finally, the Halpers’ vision for the Property is consistent with the City’s Comp. Plan and its LCI, 

both of which recognize the Property’s potential for infill residential development that connects 

residential with commercial areas within the downtown district. In fact, the LCI study identifies 

the Property appropriate for a 23-unit rear-loaded townhome development with connectivity to 

commercial development along Atlanta Highway: 



 
 
 
 
ADOD Project Narrative 
0 6th Street, Auburn GA   
March 13, 2025 
Page 4 of 5 

 

   
 

 

 

While this development is not in the same scale of that development envisioned in the LCI, this 

smaller development allows for incremental growth and may help foster additional growth while 

providing similar connectivity and streetscape development along 6th Street and 6th Avenue.  

Similarly, the City’s Comp. Plan envisions greater connectivity and an emphasis on creating a 

genuine sense of place through street design and architecture. For example, the Comp. Plan stresses 

the need to “foster collaboration with the community” through prioritizing improvements to 

“walkability and cycling options” and revitalization of the City’s historic downtown. Comp. Plan 

p. 7.  

Conclusion 
 
For the reasons stated above and detailed in the enclosed site plans and elevations, the Halpers 

asks that this Council approve the Application and allow for the development envisioned by the 

City in zoning regulations, Comprehensive Plan and LCI.  

 
 
 
 
        /s/ William Diehl                                          
       William J. Diehl  



 
 
 
 
ADOD Project Narrative 
0 6th Street, Auburn GA   
March 13, 2025 
Page 5 of 5 

 

   
 

       Thompson, O’Brien, Kappler & Nasuti, PC 
       2 Sun Court, Suite 400  
       Peachtree Corners, Georgia 30092 
       wdiehl@tokn.com // 770.925.0111 
 
 
Enclosures: Site Plan 
  Elevations 
  Floor Plan 

mailto:wdiehl@tokn.com








2,
08

0 
S.

F.
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 'A
'

1,
50

0 
S.

F.
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 'B
'

O
N

E
W

AY

O
N

E
W

AY

O
N

E
W

AY

O
N

E
W

AY

ATLANTA HWY - 5tH STREET

6t
h 

ST
RE

ET
 ~

 5
0'

 R
/W

6th AVENUE 

14

16

O
N

E
W

AY

14

12

O
N

E
W

AY

W
AT

ER
Q

U
AL

IT
Y

CSX RAILROAD

STOP
LOADING 

DETENTION AREA

SWALE SWALE

SW
AL

E

STOP

Sullins
Engineering,LLC

D
AT

E SH
EE

T 
1JO

B 
#

2/
13

/2
3

26
05

6th STREET

TO
TA

L 
AR

EA
 1

.9
5 

AC
R

ES

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's b
elo

w.
Ca

llb
ef

or
e y

ou
 d

ig
.

Ut
ilit

ie
s P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Ce

nt
er

, I
nc

.
w

w
w

.G
eo

rg
ia

81
1.

co
m

80
0-

28
2-

74
11

SI
T
E

SN

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
KS

 C
2:

R
EF

ER
EN

C
E:

N
O

TE
S:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTDOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60°

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
~ WALLER JOHN ~

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
~ CITY OF AUBURN ~

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
~ PATEL JAYESH ~

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARATHON 

AutoCAD SHX Text
60°

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10X14 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N24°56'25"E 81.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N22°53'21"E 93.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N23°31'38"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S67°26'38"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S23°59'49"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
430.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N67°09'37"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B/L (3FT HIGH LANDSCAPE SCREENING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S71°06'15"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARATHON 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS PUMPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT F

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27°11'38"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N23°45'27"E 72.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N22°59'09"E 84.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1030

AutoCAD SHX Text
1028

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026

AutoCAD SHX Text
1024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
1022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
1018

AutoCAD SHX Text
1016

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B/L (3FT HIGH LANDSCAPE SCREENING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 28445

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
#939

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROPRIATE LOCAL SPECIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL MATERIAL, CONSTRUCTION, AND WORKMANSHIP ON THIS PROJECT SHALL BE IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL THOSE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS, PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL BE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETERMINING THE LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, INCLUDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR NOTIFYING ALL UTILITY OWNERS,

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE DESIGNER DISCLAIMS ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR DESIGN CHANGES MADE BY OTHERS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL THE UTILITIES PROTECTION CENTER THREE WORKING DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE DIGGING.  IN METRO ATLANTA DIAL 404/325-5000.  THROUGHOUT GEORGIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND SHALL BE PERFORMED IN A WORKMANLIKE MANNER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES DUE TO HIS OPERATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAL 800/282-7411.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE:  (678) 687-6219

AutoCAD SHX Text
302 WEST MAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDER, GA. 30680

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERS ~  LAND PLANNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT: MATTHEW SULLINS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARROW COUNTY, GEORGIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED IN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL: AU11 121  GMD: 277

AutoCAD SHX Text
Magentic

AutoCAD SHX Text
North

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF AUBURN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE LOCATION MAP (n.t.s.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3rd AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY LINE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUBURN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARY CARTER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
9th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORNE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
7th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLEGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
6th AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5th ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L = PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L = CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W = RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
~ LEGEND ~

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF = IRON PIN FOUND (1/2" REBAR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPS = IRON PIN SET (1/2" OPEN TOP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.H. = MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV: = ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
-W- = WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV.: = INVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P. = LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CSX RR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT: 10' FROM R/W OF ROADS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE:  5' FROM PROPERTY LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR: 5' FROM PROPERTY LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.) SURVEY FOR CB-4 L.L.C. BY W.T. DUNAHOO & ASSOC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED: 12/19/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.) PRESENT ZONING: C2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.) TOTAL AREA 1.95 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.) WATER PROVIDED BY CITY OF AUBURN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.) CITY OF AUBURN SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.) NOAA TOPO

lesty
Stamp

lesty
Text Box
378

lesty
Text Box
379

lesty
Text Box
384

lesty
Text Box
385

lesty
Text Box
386

lesty
Text Box
381

lesty
Text Box
380

lesty
Text Box
382

lesty
Text Box
383

lesty
Text Box
AUBURN DT    JUNE 2023

SPECIMEN SIZE TREES ARE FLAGGED WITH PINK / BLACK FLAGGING AND TAGGED WITH NUMERED METAL TAG CORRESPONDING TO MAP.  ALL TREES MUST BE SURVEYED.

COORDINATE WITH PROJECT MANAGER FOR DENSITY TREE SURVEY NEEDS.  

LOCATIONS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE.

QUESTIONS ???   CONTACT TY CASTEEL @ 404.358.2326

MONDO LP+D



SWALE SWALE

SW
AL

E

TR
AC

T 
2

1.
36

 A
C

TR
AC

T 
1

0.
59

 A
C

TR
AC

T 
1

0.
59

 A
C

#3
78

6t
h 

ST
RE

ET
 ~

 5
0'

 R
/W

6th AVENUE 

6

OVERLAY LANDSCAPE PLAN

AR
BO

R
IS

T 
R

EP
O

R
T 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 C

O
VE

R
IN

G
 S

PE
C

IM
EN

 S
IZ

ED
 T

R
EE

S
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 O
N

 T
H

E 
SI

TE
 H

AS
 B

EE
N

 P
R

O
VI

D
ED

 A
S 

PA
R

T 
O

F 
TH

IS
SU

BM
IT

TA
L 

U
N

D
ER

 S
EP

AR
AT

E 
C

O
VE

R
.

1"
=3

0'

CLIENT

C
HE

C
KE

D
D

RA
W

N
JO

B 
N

O
.

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

TE

SC
A

LE

LAND PLANNING and DESIGN, LLC
8020 MAIN STREET
WOODSTOCK, GEORGIA 30188
phone 770.402.3719
fax 1.866.334.0203

D
A

TE
D

ES
C

RI
PT

IO
N

ET
C

SH
EE

T:

N
O

T 
R

EL
EA

SE
D

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
ZO

N
IN

G
 P

LA
N

 O
N

LY

FOR

6TH STREET - Tract 1 6th Street at 6th Avenue - CITY OF AUBURN,  GEORGIA

HBC INVESTMENTS, LLC

M
RC

M
O

TP
23

33
9.

28
.2

3

5615 GOLF CLUB DRIVE, BRASELTON, GA 30517
CHRIS AND AMBER HALPER

PH:  267-971-5662

N
O

 S
PE

C
IM

EN
 Q

U
A

LI
TY

, S
PE

C
IM

EN
 S

IZ
E 

TR
EE

S 
R

EM
O

VE
D

 =
N

O
 R

EC
O

M
PE

N
SE

 D
U

E

SP
EC

IM
EN

 T
R

EE
 IM

PA
C

T

TR
EE

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 C
A

LC
U

LA
TI

O
N

S
To

ta
l S

ite
 A

cr
ea

ge
 =

 0
.5

9 
A

cr
es

N
o 

Ex
is

tin
g 

D
en

si
ty

 U
ni

ts
 P

ro
po

se
d 

to
 b

e 
Pr

es
er

ve
d

78
 D

EN
SI

TY
 T

O
 B

E 
PL

A
N

TE
D

 O
N

SI
TE

  -
 5

9 
U

ni
ts

 R
eq

ui
re

d 
=

19
 S

ur
pl

us
 D

en
si

ty
 U

ni
t P

ro
vi

de
d

SE
E 

B
EL

O
W

 F
O

R
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

S

SP
EC

IM
EN

 S
IZ

E 
TR

EE
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 T
O

 B
E 

R
EM

O
VE

D

6T
H

 S
TR

EE
T

12
9 

Li
ne

ar
 F

t /
 2

5'
 =

 5
 T

re
es

 a
nd

 5
 S

hr
ub

s 
R

eq
ui

re
d.

6T
H

 A
VE

N
U

E

20
0 

Li
ne

ar
 F

t /
 2

5'
 =

 8
 T

re
es

 a
nd

 8
 S

hr
ub

s 
R

eq
ui

re
d.

To
ta

l o
f 1

3 
Tr

ee
s 

an
d 

13
 S

hr
ub

s 
Pr

ov
id

ed

So
d 

or
 S

ee
d 

al
l r

em
ai

ni
ng

 a
re

as
.

10
' L

an
ds

ca
pe

 S
tr

ip

PL
A

N
T 

SC
H

ED
U

LE

TR
EE

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

O
VE

R
LA

Y 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 P

LA
N

R
oo

t b
ar

ri
er

s. 
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 ro
ot

 b
ar

rie
rs

, i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
r's

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

, w
he

n 
tre

es
 a

re
 p

la
nt

ed
 w

ith
in

 te
n 

fe
et

 o
f a

 si
de

w
al

k,
 c

ur
b,

 p
av

ed
su

rf
ac

e,
 o

r u
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 u
til

ity
 c

or
rid

or
, s

ha
ll 

be
 re

qu
ire

d.
 S

tre
et

 tr
ee

s i
ns

ta
lle

d
be

tw
ee

n 
a 

si
de

w
al

k 
an

d 
cu

rb
 a

nd
 g

ut
te

r s
ha

ll 
re

qu
ire

 ro
ot

 b
ar

rie
rs

 a
lo

ng
 b

ot
h 

th
e

si
de

w
al

k 
an

d 
th

e 
cu

rb
. S

tre
et

 tr
ee

s i
ns

ta
lle

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
an

 u
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 u
til

ity
co

rr
id

or
 a

nd
 a

 si
de

w
al

k 
sh

al
l r

eq
ui

re
 ro

ot
 b

ar
rie

rs
 a

lo
ng

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
ut

ili
ty

 c
or

rid
or

an
d 

th
e 

si
de

w
al

k.
 T

he
 li

ne
ar

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

ro
ot

 b
ar

rie
r s

ha
ll 

be
 n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 2

0
fe

et
 in

 le
ng

th
 (1

0 
fe

et
 fr

om
 th

e 
tru

nk
 o

f t
he

 tr
ee

 in
 e

ac
h 

di
re

ct
io

n)
, u

nl
es

s t
he

ad
ja

ce
nt

 h
ar

ds
ca

pe
 m

ea
su

re
s l

es
s t

ha
n 

th
is

 to
ta

l l
en

gt
h,

 p
ar

al
le

l t
o 

th
e

im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

o 
be

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARATHON 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N24°56'25"E 81.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S23°59'49"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
127.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S71°06'15"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27°11'38"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N23°45'27"E 1.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1030

AutoCAD SHX Text
1028

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026

AutoCAD SHX Text
1024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
1022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1040

AutoCAD SHX Text
1030

AutoCAD SHX Text
1024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N67°09'37"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
~ WALLER JOHN ~

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
~ CITY OF AUBURN ~

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
~ PATEL JAYESH ~

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARATHON 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1030

AutoCAD SHX Text
1028

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026

AutoCAD SHX Text
1024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
1022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B/L 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1040

AutoCAD SHX Text
1030

AutoCAD SHX Text
~MONTGOMERY DANNY B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND WILLIS DONNA M~

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT F

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,270 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER QUALITY/QUANTITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LOT LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. LA001418

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.11.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.11.24 Comments/Site

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTANICAL NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HT

AutoCAD SHX Text
QTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENSITY VALUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL DENSITY CREDIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARMSTRONG GOLD MAPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACER RUBRUM 'JFS-KW78' PP25,301

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14-16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B; Full Canopy from 7' and Up; Matching; Healthy; Balanced Spread

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPERTON WILLOW OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUERCUS PHELLOS 'RT3' PP16,444

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14-16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B; Full Canopy from 7' and Up; Matching; Healthy; Balanced Spread

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNERSTONE EUROPEAN HORNBEAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPINUS BETULUS 'CORNERSTONE'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14-16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B; Full Canopy from 7' and Up; Matching; Healthy; Balanced Spread

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANG'S RUBY LOROPETALUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loropetalum chinense 'Chang's Ruby'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 gal

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
Full to Ground; Matching; Healthy; Balanced Spread to Min. 24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL UNITS PLANTED=

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



 
 

 
 
 

 
CITY OF AUBURN 
Mayor and Council 

Council Meeting 
July 10, 2025 

6:00pm 
Auburn Municipal Complex 

1 Auburn Way 
Auburn, GA 30011 

 
 

  Present: Mayor:                      Richard Roquemore  
  Council Member:                   Robert L. Vogel 
  Council Member:                   Taylor J. Sisk 
  Council Member:                   Jamie L. Bradley 
  Council Member:                   Joshua Rowan 

 
City Staff in Attendance: Michael Parks, Staci Waters, Brooke Haney, Iris Akridge, Chief Hodge 
 
Also in Attendance: Jack Wilson 

Mayor Roquemore called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
Rev. Rob Ballard gave the Invocation. 
Mayor Roquemore gave the pledge. 
 
Council Reports and Announcements 
Mayor Roquemore asked for Council Reports and Announcements: none was given. 
 
Mayor Roquemore announced the need to amend the agenda to add consideration to the 
purchase of commercial lawn mowers.  
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to amend the agenda. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Rowan to amend the agenda to add this item.  
Second: Made by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion; there was none.    
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any Citizen Comments.  
Danielle Archambear, Spoke on Item E- Townes of Auburn Waiver from Sec.16.28.020. Access. 
 
VOTING ITEMS 
 
Item 1.: Consent Agenda 
a. Council Business Meeting Minutes- June 12, 2025  
b. Council Workshop Meeting Minutes- June 26, 2025  
c. Special Called Meeting Minutes- June 12, 2025  
d. Special Called Meeting Minutes- June 26, 2025  

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR   
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

                 Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 
 



e. Townes of Auburn Waiver Dec. 16.28.020-Access.  
f. Update Stormwater Management User Fee Ordinance Section 18.14.050  
 
 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to approve the consent agenda. 
Second: by Council Member Rowan 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion; there was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes. 
 
NEW ITEMS 
  
Item 2.: Blue River Development- Relinquish Easement 
Jack Wilson: Presented  
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the Blue River Development- Relinquish Easement 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk approved the Blue River Development- Relinquish Easement 
Second: Made by Council Member Vogel 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion; there was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes. 
 
Item 3: Purchase of Commercial Mowers 
Iris Akridge Presented 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. Council Member Vogel Expressed he would like to advise 
that we get a maintenance plan for the mowers to make sure they are properly maintained. 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the Purchase of Commercial Mowers 
Motion: Made by Council Member Vogel approved the Purchase of Commercial Mowers 
Second: Made by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion; there was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes.  
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any citizen comments; there were none. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Roquemore called for a motion to adjourn. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to adjourn. 
Second: By Council Member Rowan. 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion; there was none. Votes were taken, with all members 
present voting yes. Meeting adjourned. 

Respectfully submitted,  

Read and approved this ___________ Day of August 2025 

Attest: 

 

 ___________________________________________________ 

Mayor Richard E. Roquemore 



MAYOR                                                          CITY COUNCIL 
Rick E. Roquemore                               Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR                             Jamie l. Bradley 
Michael Parks                                                  Joshua Rowan 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 

July 24, 2025 
6:00 PM 

Council Chambers  

1 Auburn Way 

Auburn, GA 30011 

 

Present: Mayor:              Richard Roquemore  

Council Member:           Robert L. Vogel 

Council Member:           Taylor J. Sisk 

Council Member:           Jamie L. Bradley (Absent) 

Council Member:           Joshua Rowan 

                           

 

City Staff in Attendance: Michael Parks, Staci Waters, Brooke Haney, Iris Akridge, Chief Hodge 

Also in Attendance: Jack Wilson 

 

Mayor Roquemore called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 

Council Reports and Announcements 

Mayor Roquemore asked for Council Reports and Announcements. Staci Waters thanked 

everyone for coming to Jeep Fest. She also announced the Car show this coming Saturday and 

the Farmers Markets on Tuesdays. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Item 1: RZ25-0001 Cornerstone Home Builders rezoning of parcels AU05 018 and AU05 

019. 

Sarah McQuade Presented 

Item was tabled to the August 20th, 2025Planning and Commission meeting. Tabled for the 

Council work session and public hearing September 11th, 2025. 

 

Item 2: VWSE25-0002 Cornerstone Waiver from SEC. 16.28.030.C.1 and Sec. 16.28.060.B.1 

Sarah McQuade Presented 



Item was tabled to the August 20th, 2025Planning and Commission meeting. Tabled for the 

Council work session and public hearing September 11th, 2025. 

 

Item 3: PL25-0009 HPC Investments, LLC Overlay Architectural Review 

Sarah McQuade Presented 

Placed on August 14, 2025, Council Business Agenda 

 

Item 4: FPR25-001 Kingston Cove Final Plat 

Sarah McQuade Presented 

Placed on August 14, 2025, Council Business Agenda 

 

Item 5: Renewal of Contract for SCADA System 

Iris Akridge Presented 

Placed on August 14, 2025, Council Business Agenda 

 

Item 6: Cold Planer Attachment for Mini Excavator 

Iris Akridge Presented 

Placed on August 14, 2025, Council Business Agenda 

 

Item 7: Renewal of the City of Civility Resolution #03-025 

Michael Parks Presented 

Placed on August 14, 2025, Council Business Agenda 

 

Item 8: Engineering Oversite and Construction Contract Administration for the Raw Water 

Storage Pond 

Michael Parks Presented 

Placed on August 14, 2025, Council Business Agenda 

 

Item 9: Construction Phase Engineering Services for Phase B Raw Waters Pipeline and 

Rock Creek Intakes #1 and #2 

Michael Parks Presented 

Placed on August 14, 2025, Council Business Agenda 

 

Mayor Roquemore asked for the Citizen comments. There were none.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Read and approved this  Day of August 2025 Attest: 
 

 

 

  Mayor Richard E. Roquemore 



Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF AUBURN 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

Budget FY 2025 Special Called Meeting 
August 4, 2025 

5:00 PM 
Council Chambers 

1 Auburn Way 
Auburn, GA  30011 

Present: Mayor: 
Council Member:
Council Member:
Council Member: 
Council Member:

Richard Roquemore 
Robert L. Vogel III
Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 
Joshua Rowan

City Staff in Attendance: Michael Parks, Sunshine Palmer, Brooke Haney, Iris Akridge 

Also in Attendance: Dena Boston - Finance Department

Mayor Roquemore called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.  

NEW BUSINESS

Item 1: Revenue- Projection for General Fund, Water, and Stormwater
Sunshine Palmer Presented 

Item 2: Expenditures- Public Works, Roads, Water, Stormwater
Iris Akridge Presented

Item 3: Expenditures- Govt Buildings, Street Lights, Downtown Development, Main Street, 
Library                                                                                                                                                
Michael Parks Presented

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 
      Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 Second by: Council Member Sisk 
Votes were taken with all members present voting yes. The public hearing is closed. 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to adjourn the public hearing on the budget on the 2025 
Budget. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Bradley to close the public hearing. 
 Second by: Council Member Sisk 
Votes were taken with all members present voting yes. The public hearing is adjourned. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Read and approved this ___________ Day of August 2024  
Attest: 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Mayor Richard Roquemore 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



D























AGENDA ITEM: E 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Michael E. Parks 
City Administrator 

DATE:  July 18, 2025 

PURPOSE: 

Readoption of the Civility Pledge Resolution #03-025 

BACKGROUND:  

Civility Pledge 
The way we govern ourselves is often as important as the positions we take. Our 
collective decisions will be better when differing views have had the opportunity to be 
fully vetted and considered. All people have the right to be treated with respect. Courtesy 
and openness.  We value all input. We commit to conduct ourselves at all times with 
civility and courtesy to each other. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

To approve Resolution #03-025 Pledging to Practice and Promote Civility in the City of 
Auburn.  

FUNDING: N/A 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



RESOLUTION #__03-025_________
PLEDGING TO PRACTICE AND PROMOTE CIVILITY IN THE CITY OF AUBURN 

WHEREAS, the City Auburn of the City of Auburn (the “Council”), the governing body of the City of Auburn, 
Georgia (the “Municipality”), recognizes that robust debate and the right to self-expression, as protected 
by the First Amendment to the United States Constitution, are fundamental rights and essential 
components of democratic self-governance; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council further recognizes that the public exchange of diverse ideas and viewpoints is 
necessary to the health of the community and the quality of governance in the Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, the members of City Council, as elected representatives of the community and stewards of the 
public trust, recognize their special role in modeling open, free and vigorous debate while maintaining the 
highest standards of civility, honesty and mutual respect; and 

WHEREAS, City Council meetings are open to the public and thus how City officials execute their legal 
duties is on public display; and 

WHEREAS, civility by City officials in the execution of their legislative duties and responsibilities fosters 
respect, kindness and thoughtfulness between City officials, avoiding personal ill will which results in 
actions being directed to issues made in the best interests of residents; and 

WHEREAS, civility between City officials presents an opportunity to set a positive example of conduct and 
promotes thoughtful debate and discussion of legislative issues, resulting in better public policy and a 
more informed electorate while also encouraging civil behavior between residents; and  

WHEREAS, civility between City officials is possible if each member of the elected body remembers 
that they represent not only themselves, but the constituents in their area and in the City; and 

WHEREAS, in order to publicly declare its commitment to civil discourse and to express its concern for 
the common good and well-being of all of its residents, the Council of the City of Auburn has 
determined to readopt this resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE 

The City of Auburn pledges to practice and promote civility within the governing body as a means of 
conducting legislative duties and responsibilities. 

SECTION TWO 

The elected officials of the City Council enact this civility pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous 
community by advocating for civil engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding 
solutions for the betterment of the City of Auburn. 

SECTION THREE 

This pledge strives to ensure that all communication be open, honest, and transparent as this is vital for 
cultivating trust and relationships. 



SECTION FOUR 

This pledge strives to show courtesy by treating all colleagues, staff and members of the public in a 
professional and respectful manner whether in-person, online or in written communication, especially 
when we disagree. 

SECTION FIVE 

This pledge strives to ensure mutual respect to achieve municipal goals, recognizing that patience, 
tolerance, and civility are imperative to success and demonstrates the Council’s commitment to respect 
different opinions, by inviting and considering different perspectives, allowing space for ideas to be 
expressed, debated, opposed, and clarified in a constructive manner. 

SECTION SIX 

This pledge demonstrates our commitment against violence and incivility in all their forms whenever and 
wherever they occur in all our meetings and interactions.  

SECTION SEVEN 

The City of Auburn expects members of the public to be civil in its discussion of matters under 
consideration by and before the City Council, with elected officials, staff, and each other.  

ADOPTED this ___ day of August, 2025. 

Mayor Richard E. Roquemore Council Member Jamie L. Bradley 

Council Member Robert L. Vogel, III Council Member Taylor J. Sisk 

Council Member Joshua Rowan  

ATTEST: 

Brooke Haney, City Clerk 



AGENDA ITEM: F 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FM:  Michael Parks 
City Administrator 

DATE: July 18, 2025 

PURPOSE:   
Provide Engineering Oversite and Construction Contract Administration for the 
construction of the tunnel and shaft at the Raw Water Storage Pond. 

BACKGROUND:  
The construction of the tunnel and shaft for the withdrawal of water from the Raw 
Water Storage Pond is about to begin.   The project was awarded to Heavy 
Constructors.  Engineering Oversite and Construction Contract Administration of 
the project is needed.  The City of Auburn and Carter & Sloope signed an 
engineering services agreement a couple of years ago.  This authorization request is 
an extension of that agreement. 

RECOMMENDATION:   
Request a motion to approve this agreement for engineering services.  The cost to 
Auburn will be $107,032 

FUNDING:  
These engineering services will be paid out of a $4,000,000 GEFA loan or future 
revenue bonds.  

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 













https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/documents/workshops/workshops/2025/july 24th/9. task order 
cover sheet (2).doc 

AGENDA ITEM: G 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FM:  Michael Parks 
City Administrator 

DATE: July 18, 2025 

PURPOSE: Provide Construction Phase Engineering Services during the construction 
of the Phase B raw water pipeline and Rock Creek Intakes #1 and #2.  

BACKGROUND: The project was bid out back in November 2023 and is being funded 
with ARPA Federal Grant.  The start of work has been delayed due to funding issues, 
grant administration issues, material issues, permitting issues, and coordination with the 
other construction contract in progress at the Raw Water Storage Pond.   
The Contractor, Strack, Inc. is now ready to start construction.  Engineering oversite is 
needed.  This Task Order provides that oversite.    

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of this task order so that Hussey Gay Bell can 
proceed with the project in the amount of $120,500.  

FUNDING: The engineering and construction cost of the pipelines and intakes #1 and 
#2 is being paid for with an ARPA grant.  

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
TASK ORDER 

 
CLIENT:           City of Auburn 
  PO Box 1059 
  Auburn, GA 30011 
  Attn: Honorable Rick Roquemore, Mayor, and Auburn City Council 
  
CONSULTANT: Hussey, Gay, Bell & DeYoung, Inc., Consulting Engineers DATE: July 17, 2025 
 3100 Breckinridge Boulevard, Building 300  
 Duluth, Georgia 30096-4986 OPERATION NO:         
  
 Page 1 of 15 
 
RE:  Task Order 41 
 Rock Creek Intake #2 and Pipelines, Phase B, Construction Phase Services 
 Auburn Water Supply and Storage Project 
 Hussey Gay Bell Project No.: 25-0016-WS 
 
The CLIENT herewith requests and authorizes the CONSULTANT to perform Engineering, Planning, and/or Surveying 
Services described below and agree to the terms as follows.  For the purposes of this agreement, the Contractor is the 
design-build contractor selected by the CLIENT. 
  
The scope of the work being administered includes 917 feet of 12-inch diameter IPS-HDPE pipe with manholes, 1,830 
feet of 18-inch diameter IPS-HDPE pipe, 350 feet of 24” DIP pipe, 410 feet of 6-inch C-900 PVC pipe, one flow control 
manhole with valve, one manhole  with flow meter, one (1) Rock Creek Intake #2, 140 feet of 24-inch DIP, and 
associated appurtenances.  The work also includes such administrative services as may be necessary to assist the city 
with the administration of grants, loans and program management services associated with the project.  Construction 
Period is estimated to be 7 to 9 months. 
 
Engineering Services 
 
The CONSULTANT will provide the following Engineering and Surveying services during the construction of the Raw 
water force main from the RWSP to the Drinking Water Treatment Plant. 
 
Construction Phase Services Summary is presented below with a detailed list of services presented in ATTACHMENTS 
A and B. 
 

A. Attend the pre-construction conference with the CLIENT and Strack Inc., the Contractor.  Discuss the 
construction schedule, pay request submittals, shop drawing submittals, and change order procedures. 

B. Coordinate, collaborate and meet with the Contractor on the minor details to be resolved prior to 
construction.  

C. Respond in writing to Contractor requests for information regarding construction of improvements.  Assist 
the Contractor with plan interpretations. 

D. Provide benchmark and property line locations so that the Contractor can locate the buildings and 
utilities according to the CONSULTANT’S plans. 

E. Review shop drawings and other submittals. 
F. Review soil test reports and consult with the soils engineer as necessary. 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 2 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

G. Make periodic site visits (daily) to determine that the work is being performed in general accordance with 
the contract drawings and specifications.  Report any defective work to the CLIENT. 

H. Meet with the Contractor and CLIENT once each month to discuss progress and review pay applications.  
The CONSULTANT shall submit a written report to the CLIENT and Contractor for each week’s progress.  
The maximum of duration of construction is anticipated to be two hundred seventy (270) days or about 
nine (9) months.  Visits will be made during that period.  Near the end of construction, CONSULTANT will 
seek future authorization to participate in the equipment testing and EPD’s operations permit process. 

I. Upon receipt of a pay request from the Contractor, CONSULTANT will visit the site to determine that the 
payment items have been installed or partly installed.  Review and process in a timely manner monthly 
pay estimates by the Contractor (about 10 days).  Recommend payment based on construction 
completeness to date. 

J. Process any requests for a change in the construction scope by the Contractor.  Work shall include: a visit 
to the site to determine the need for the change, assist the CLIENT in negotiating the cost of the 
increase/decrease based on fair market value, and upon approval by all parties, issue a written change 
order describing the revised work along with the agreed costs.  If the CLIENT requests a change order, it 
will be prepared as an additional service to this contract. 

K. Review and comment on the Operations and Maintenance Manual to be prepared by the Design-Build 
Contractor.  

L. Perform an inspection at the substantial completion point of the project and prepare a punch list of any 
deficient items associated with the plant and site construction.  Prepare an opinion of substantial 
completion. 

M. Perform a final inspection to determine the punch list items have been addressed by the Contractor. 
 

The CLIENT and the CONSULTANT agreed that the above summary of construction phase professional services are more 
specifically defined in Attachment A.  Resident Project Representative services are more specifically defined in 
Attachment B.  Should scope differences be identified, Attachments A and B will govern. 
 
In addition to the Construction Contract Phase Services, the work also includes such administrative services as may be 
necessary to assist the city with the administration of grants, loans and program management associated with the 
project.  
 
Indemnification 
 
The CLIENT and the CONSULTANT agree that the CLIENT will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the CONSULTANT 
from any claim or suit whatsoever, including, but not limited to, all payments, expenses or costs involved, arising from, 
or alleged to have arisen from the Contractor’s performance or the failure of the Contractor’s work to conform to the 
design intent and the contract documents.  The CONSULTANT agrees to be responsible for its own or its employee’s 
acts, errors, or omissions. 
 
Schedule   
 
The CONSULTANT anticipates that these tasks will take about nine (9) months or two hundred seventy (270) days from 
Notice to Proceed to completion or execution of this agreement.  Should the construction period exceed this estimate, 
additional services and compensation will be required. 
 
Deliverable  
 
Attend construction for the period of the Contractor’s agreement and prepare twice monthly progress reports to CLIENT.  
Provide baseline project surveying control.  O&M manual.  
 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 3 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

Fee for Engineering Services  
 
The CLIENT agrees to pay an amount equal to the time and expenses incurred according to the following: 
 
The CONSULTANT’S fee for the Engineering Services described above in Items A through M will be a lump sum amount 
of $120,500 and will be paid in 10 monthly amounts.  Fee is estimated based on 3.8% of construction costs, reference 
USDA guidance documents plus effort to assist with grants, loans and program management.   
 
Should this fee need modification, CONSULTANT will seek CLIENT’S concurrence at an early date.  CONSULTANT’S fee 
for the Additional Services will be an amount equal to the number of hours and fractions thereof devoted to the project 
by each category of personnel assigned to the project multiplied by the respective hourly charge rates, as shown on 
Attachment C.   
 
The estimated fee is subject to renegotiation if the Engineering Services are not authorized within sixty (60) days from 
the date of this Authorization. 
 
Reimbursable Expenses 
 
Reimbursable expenses are included in the above fee budget but may be itemized separately from engineering services 
on invoices.  
 
Authorization 
 
CONSULTANT will commence services immediately upon receipt of signed authorization. 
 
Terms and Conditions 
 
All other terms and conditions of the original agreement between the parties, dated November 2, 2012, remain the 
same.   
 
Please sign in the space provided and return one (1) original copy to our office.  We appreciate the opportunity to 
provide the City of Auburn this service and look forward to working with you on this project. 
 
HUSSEY, GAY, BELL & DEYOUNG, INC.  CITY OF AUBURN 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 
 
By:   By:   
 
 
Name/Title:  James B. Aton, PE  Name/Title:  Rick Roquemore, Mayor  
 Project Manager/Engineer    
 
By:   Attest:   
 
 
Name/Title:  Mark Bond, PE   Name/Title:   
 President, Atlanta   
 
Date:   Date:   
JBA 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 4 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

  



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 5 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

Construction Phase Services 
 
A. The CONSULTANT will provide the following construction phase services: 
 

1. General Administration of Construction Contract. Consult with CLIENT and act as CLIENT’S representative as 
provided in the General Conditions. The extent and limitations of the duties, responsibilities and authority of 
CONSULTANT as assigned in said General Conditions shall not be modified, except as CONSULTANT may 
otherwise agree in writing.  All of CLIENT'S instructions to Contractor will be issued through CONSULTANT, 
who shall have authority to act on behalf of CLIENT in dealings with Contractor to the extent provided in this 
Agreement, said General Conditions and except as otherwise provided in writing. 

 
2. Resident Project Representative (RPR). When the CONSULTANT must be absent from the site, the 

CONSULTANT will provide the services of an RPR at the site to assist the CONSULTANT and to provide more 
extensive observation of Contractor’s work. Duties, responsibilities, and authority of the RPR are as set forth 
in Exhibit B. The furnishing of such RPR's services will not extend CONSULTANT’S responsibilities or authority 
beyond the specific limits set forth elsewhere in this Agreement. 

 
3. Selecting Independent Testing Laboratory. Assist CLIENT in the selection of an independent testing laboratory 

to perform material testing, compaction and soils testing. 
 
4. Pre-Construction Conference. Participate in a pre-construction conference prior to commencement of work at 

the site. 
 
5. Baselines and Benchmarks. As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for locating the work which 

in CONSULTANT’S judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed. 
 
6. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction. In connection with observations of Contractor’s work in 

progress while it is in progress: 
 

a. Make visits to the site daily or at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction, as 
CONSULTANT deems necessary, in order to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional 
the progress and quality of the work. Such visits and observations by CONSULTANT, and the Resident 
Project Representative, if any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to Extend to every aspect of 
Contractor’s work in progress or to involve detailed inspections of Contractor’s work in progress beyond 
the responsibilities specifically assigned to CONSULTANT in this Agreement and the Contract Documents, 
but rather are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and similar methods of general 
observation of the Work based on CONSULTANT’S exercise of professional judgment as assisted by the 
Resident Project Representative, if any. Based on information obtained during such visits and such 
observations, CONSULTANT will determine in general if Contractor’s work is proceeding in accordance 
with the Contract Documents, and CONSULTANT shall keep CLIENT informed of the progress of the Work. 

 
b. The purpose of CONSULTANT’S visits to, and representation by the Resident Project Representative, if 

any, at the Site, will be to enable CONSULTANT to better carry out the duties and responsibilities assigned 
to and undertaken by CONSULTANT during the Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of 
CONSULTANT’S efforts as an experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for CLIENT a 
greater degree of confidence that the completed work will conform in general to the Contract Documents 
and that the integrity of the design concept of the completed project as a functioning whole as indicated 
in the Contract Documents has been implemented and preserved by contractor. CONSULTANT shall not, 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 6 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

during such visits or as a result of such observations of Contractor’s work in progress, supervise, direct, 
or have control over Contractor’s work, nor shall CONSULTANT have authority over or responsibility for the 
site safety, means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected by 
Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to Contractor’s work, or for any failure of 
Contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to Contractor’s furnishing and performing the 
Work. Accordingly, CONSULTANT neither guarantees the performance of any Contractor nor assumes 
responsibility for any Contractor’s failure to furnish and perform its work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

 
7. Defective Work. Recommend to CLIENT that Contractor’s work be disapproved and rejected while it is in 

progress if, on the basis of such observations, CONSULTANT believes that such work will not produce a 
completed project that conforms generally to the Contract Documents or that it will prejudice the integrity of 
the design concept of the completed project as a functioning whole as indicated in the contract documents. 

 
8. Clarifications and Interpretations; Field Orders. Issue necessary clarifications and interpretations of the 

contract documents as appropriate to the orderly completion of Contractor’s work. Such clarifications and 
interpretations will be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the contract documents. 
CONSULTANT may issue field orders authorizing minor variations from the requirements of the contract 
documents. 

 
9. Change Orders and Work Change Directives. Recommend change orders and work change directives to 

CLIENT, as appropriate, and prepare change orders and work change directives as required. 
 
10. Shop Drawings and Samples. Review and approve or take other appropriate action in respect to shop 

drawings and samples and other data which Contractor is required to submit, but only for conformance with 
the information given in the contract documents and compatibility with the design concept of the completed 
project as a functioning whole as indicated in the contract documents. Such reviews and approvals or other 
action will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction or to safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto. CONSULTANT has an obligation to meet any Contractor’s 
submittal schedule that has earlier been acceptable to CONSULTANT. 

 
11. Substitutes and "or-equal." Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or "or-equal" materials 

and equipment proposed by Contractor. 
 

12. Inspections and Tests. Require such special inspections or tests of Contractor’s work as deemed reasonably 
necessary, and receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by laws and 
regulations or the contract documents. CONSULTANT’S review of such certificates will be for the purpose of 
determining that the results certified indicate compliance with the contract documents and will not constitute 
an independent evaluation that the content or procedures of such inspections, tests, or approvals comply with 
the requirements of the contract documents. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely on the results of such tests. 

 
13. This Section Not Used. 
 
14. Applications for Payment. Based on CONSULTANT’S observations as an experienced and qualified design 

professional and on review of Applications for Payment and accompanying supporting documentation: 
 

a. Determine the amounts that CONSULTANT recommends Contractor be paid.  Such recommendations of 
payment will be in writing and will constitute CONSULTANT’S representation to CLIENT, based on such 
observations and review, that, to the best of CONSULTANT’S knowledge, information and belief, 
Contractor’s work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of such work is generally in 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 7 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

accordance with the contract documents (subject to an evaluation of the work as a functioning whole 
prior to or upon substantial completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the contract 
documents and to any other qualifications stated in the recommendation), and the conditions precedent 
to Contractor’s being entitled to such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is 
CONSULTANT’S responsibility to observe Contractor’s work. In the case of unit price work, CONSULTANT’S 
recommendations of payment will include final determinations of quantities and classifications of 
Contractor’s work (subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the contract documents).  The 
responsibilities of CONSULTANT contained in General Conditions are expressly subject to the limitations 
set forth in General Conditions and other express or general limitations in this Agreement and elsewhere. 

 
b. By recommending any payment, CONSULTANT shall not thereby be deemed to have represented that 

observations made by CONSULTANT to check the quality or quantity of Contractor’s work as it is 
performed and furnished have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of Contractor’s work in 
progress, or involved detailed inspections of the work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to 
CONSULTANT in this Agreement and the contract documents. Neither CONSULTANT’S review of 
Contractor’s  work for the purposes of recommending payments nor CONSULTANT’S recommendation of 
any payment including final payment will impose on CONSULTANT responsibility to supervise, direct, or 
control Contractor’s work in progress or for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures 
of construction or safety precautions or programs incident thereto, or Contractor’s compliance with Laws 
and Regulations applicable to Contractor’s furnishing and performing the Work. It will also not impose 
responsibility on CONSULTANT to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor 
has used the moneys paid on account of the contract price, or to determine that title to any portion of the 
work in progress, materials, or equipment has passed to CLIENT free and clear of any liens, claims, 
security interests, or encumbrances, or that there may not be other matters at issue between CLIENT and 
Contractor that might affect the amount that should be paid. 

 
15. Contractor’s Completion Documents. 

 
a. Receive and review maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, and guarantees. 
 
b. Receive bonds, certificates, or other evidence of insurance not previously submitted and required by the 

contract documents, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, shop drawings, samples and other 
data approved as provided under General Conditions, and the annotated record documents which are to  
be assembled by Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents to obtain final payment. The 
extent of such CONSULTANT’S review will be limited as provided in General Conditions. 

 
c. CONSULTANT shall transmit these documents to CLIENT. 

 
16. Substantial Completion.  Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor considers the entire work 

ready for its intended use, in company with CLIENT and Contractor, conduct an inspection to determine if the 
work is substantially complete. If after considering any objections of CLIENT, CONSULTANT considers the work 
substantially complete, CONSULTANT shall deliver a certificate of Substantial Completion to CLIENT and 
contractor. 

 
17. Additional Tasks. Perform or provide the following additional construction phase tasks or deliverables: None. 
 
18. Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work. Conduct a final inspection to determine if the completed work of 

contractor is acceptable so that CONSULTANT may recommend, in writing, final payment to Contractor. 
Accompanying the recommendation for final payment, CONSULTANT shall also provide a notice in the form 
attached hereto as the "Notice of Acceptability of Work" that the work is acceptable to the best of 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 8 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

CONSULTANT’S knowledge, information, and belief and based on the extent of the services provided by 
CONSULTANT under this agreement. 
 

B. Duration of Construction Phase.  The construction phase will commence with the execution of the first construction 
agreement for the project or any part thereof and will terminate upon written recommendation by CONSULTANT for 
final payment to Contractor. If the project involves more than one prime contract, Construction Phase services may 
be rendered at different times in respect to the separate contracts. 

 
C. Limitation of Responsibilities.  CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Contractor, 

or of any of their subcontractors, suppliers, or of any other individual or entity performing or furnishing any of the 
work. CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for failure of any contractor to perform or furnish the work in 
accordance with the contract documents. 

 
PART 2 -- ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
A2.01 Additional Services Requiring CLIENT’S Authorization in Advance 
 
A. Upon written authorization from CLIENT, CONSULTANT, during the post-construction phase, shall: 
 

1. Provide assistance in connection with the testing and adjusting of project equipment or systems. 
 
2. Assist CLIENT in training CLIENT’S staff to operate and maintain project, equipment, and systems. 
 
3. Assist CLIENT in developing procedures for control of the operation and maintenance of, and record keeping 

for project equipment and systems. 
 
4. Together with CLIENT, visit the project to observe any apparent defects in the work, assist CLIENT in 

consultations and discussions with Contractor concerning correction of any such defects, and make 
recommendations as to replacement or correction of defective work, if present. 

 
5. Perform or provide the following additional post-construction phase tasks or deliverables: 
 
6. In company with CLIENT or CLIENT’S representative, provide an inspection of the project within one (1) month 

before the end of the correction period to ascertain whether any portion of the work is subject to correction. 
 

B. If authorized in writing by CLIENT, CONSULTANT shall furnish or obtain from others additional services of the types 
listed below.  These services will be paid for by CLIENT as indicated in fee for engineering services. 

 
1. Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished under basic services) 

for private or governmental grants, loans or advances in connection with the project; preparation or review of 
environmental assessments and impact statements; review and evaluation of the effects on the design 
requirements for the project of any such statements and documents prepared by others; and assistance in 
obtaining approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the 
project. 

 
2. Services to make measured drawings of or to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the 

accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by CLIENT. 
 
3. Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the portions of the project 

designed or specified by CONSULTANT or its design requirements including, but not limited to, changes in 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 9 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

size, complexity, CLIENT’S schedule, character of construction, or method of financing; and revising previously 
accepted studies, reports, drawings, specifications, or contract documents when such revisions are required 
by changes in laws and regulations enacted subsequent to the effective date of this agreement or are due to 
any other causes beyond CONSULTANT’S control. 

 
4. Services resulting from CLIENT’S request to evaluate additional study and report phase alternative solutions 

beyond those identified in contract documents. 
 

5. Services required as a result of CLIENT’S providing incomplete or incorrect project information. 
 
6. Providing renderings or models for CLIENT’S use. 
 
7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to, detailed consideration of operations, 

maintenance, and overhead expenses; the preparation of feasibility studies, cash flow and economic 
evaluations, rate schedules, and appraisals; assistance in obtaining financing for the project; evaluating 
processes available for licensing, and assisting CLIENT in obtaining process licensing; detailed quantity 
surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and audits or inventories required in connection with construction 
performed by CLIENT. 

 
8. Furnishing services of CONSULTANT’S subconsultants for other than engineering services. 
 
9. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than one. 
 
10. Services during out-of-town travel required of CONSULTANT other than for visits to the site or CLIENT’S office. 
 
11. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured independent review processes, 

including, but not limited to, construction management, cost estimating, project peer review, value 
engineering, and constructability review requested by CLIENT; and performing or furnishing services required 
to revise studies, reports, drawings, specifications, or other bidding documents as a result of such review 
processes. 

 
12. Preparing additional bidding documents or contract documents for alternate bids or prices requested by 

CLIENT for the work or a portion thereof. 
 
13. Determining the acceptability of substitute materials and equipment proposed during the bidding or 

negotiating phase when substitution prior to the award of contracts is allowed by the bidding documents. 
 
14. Assistance in connection with bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for construction, materials, 

equipment, or services. 
 
15. Providing construction re-surveys and restaking to enable Contractor to perform its work and any type of 

property surveys or related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests in real property; and 
providing other special field surveys. 

 
16. Providing construction phase services beyond the contract times set forth in the design-build contract. 
 
17. Providing assistance in resolving any hazardous environmental condition in compliance with current laws and 

regulations. 
 
18. Preparing and furnishing to CLIENT record drawings showing appropriate record information based on project 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 10 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

annotated record documents received from Contractor. 
 

19. Preparation of operation and maintenance manuals. 
  
  



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 11 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

20. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for CLIENT in any litigation, arbitration or other dispute 
resolution process related to the project. 
 

21. Providing more extensive services required to enable CONSULTANT to issue notices or certifications requested 
by CLIENT. 

 
22. Other services performed or furnished by CONSULTANT not otherwise provided for in this agreement. 

 
 
A2.02 Required Additional Services 
 
A. CONSULTANT shall perform or furnish, without requesting or receiving specific advance authorization from CLIENT, 

the additional services of the types listed below.  CONSULTANT shall advise CLIENT in writing promptly after 
starting any such additional services. 

 
1. Services in connection with work change directives and change orders to reflect changes requested by CLIENT 

so as to make the compensation commensurate with the extent of the additional services rendered. 
 
2. Services in making revisions to drawings and specifications occasioned by the acceptance of substitute 

materials or equipment other than "or-equal" items; and services after the award of the construction 
agreement in evaluating and determining the acceptability of a substitution which is found to be inappropriate 
for the project or an excessive number of substitutions. 

 
3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a direct or indirect result 

of materials, equipment, or energy shortages. 
 
4. Additional or extended services during construction made necessary by (1) emergencies or acts of God 

endangering the work, (2) an occurrence of a hazardous environmental condition, (3) work damaged by fire or 
other cause during construction, (4) a significant amount of defective, neglected, or delayed work by 
Contractor, (5) acceleration of the progress schedule involving services beyond normal working hours, or (6) 
default by Contractor. 

 
5. Services (other than engineering services during the post-construction phase) in connection with any partial 

utilization of any part of the work by CLIENT prior to substantial completion. 
 
6. Evaluating an unreasonable claim or an excessive number of claims submitted by Contractor or others in 

connection with the Work. 
  



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 12 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

Resident Project Representative 
 

A. CONSULTANT shall furnish a Resident Project Representative ("RPR"), assistants, and other field staff to assist 
CONSULTANT in observing progress and quality of the work. The RPR, assistants, and other field staff under this 
Attachment B may provide full time representation or may provide representation to a lesser degree when the 
CONSULTANT is away for the site such as vacation or sick leave. 

 
B. Through such additional observations of Contractor’s work in progress and field checks of materials and 

equipment by the RPR and assistants, CONSULTANT shall endeavor to provide further protection for CLIENT 
against defects and deficiencies in the work. However, CONSULTANT shall not, during such visits or as a result 
of such observations of Contractor’s work in progress, supervise, direct, or have control over the Contractor’s 
w ork nor shall CONSULTANT have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, or procedures selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to the 
Contractor’s work in progress, for any failure of Contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to 
Contractor’s performing and furnishing the work, or responsibility of construction for Contractor’s failure to furnish 
and perform the work in accordance with the contract documents. 

 
C. The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are limited to those of CONSULTANT in the Agreement with the CLIENT 

and in the contract documents, and are further limited and described as follows: 
 

l. General: RPR is CONSULTANT’S agent at the site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of 
CONSULTANT, and will confer with CONSULTANT regarding RPR's actions. RPR's dealings in matters 
pertaining to the Contractor’s work in progress shall in general be with CONSULTANT and Contractor, 
keeping CLIENT advised as necessary. RPR's dealings with subcontractors shall only be through or with the 
full knowledge and approval of Contractor.  RPR shall generally communicate with CLIENT with the 
knowledge of and under the direction of CONSULTANT. 

 
2. Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of shop drawing and sample submittals, and schedule 

of values prepared by Contractor and consult with CONSULTANT concerning acceptability. 
 
3. Conferences and Meetings: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction conferences, progress 

meetings, job conferences and other project-related meetings, and prepare and circulate copies of minutes 
thereof. 

 
4. Liaison: 

 
a. Serve as CONSULTANT’S liaison with Contractor, working principally through Contractor’s 

superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of the contract documents. 
 

b. Assist CONSULTANT in serving as CLIENT’S liaison with Contractor when Contractor’s operations 
affect CLIENT’S on-site operations. 

 
c. Assist in obtaining from CLIENT additional details or information, when required for proper execution 

of the work. 
 

5. Interpretation of Contract Documents: Report to CONSULTANT when clarifications and interpretations of 
the contract documents are needed and transmit to Contractor clarifications and interpretations as 
issued by CONSULTANT. 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 13 of 14 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

 
6. Shop Drawings and Samples: 

 
a. Record date of receipt of samples and approved shop drawings. 
 
b. receive samples which are furnished at the site by Contractor and notify CONSULTANT of availability 

of samples for examination. 
 

c. Advise CONSULTANT and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the work requiring a 
shop drawing or sample submittal for which RPR believes that the submittal has not been approved 
by CONSULTANT. 

 
7. Modifications: Consider and evaluate Contractor’s suggestions for modifications in drawings or 

specifications and report with RPR's recommendations to CONSULTANT. Transmit to Contractor in 
writing decisions as issued by CONSULTANT. 

 
8. Review of Work and Rejection of Defective Work: 

 
a. Conduct on-site observations of Contractor’s work in progress to assist CONSULTANT in determining 

if the work is in general proceeding in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
b. Report to CONSULTANT whenever RPR believes that any part of Contractor’s work in progress will 

not produce a completed project that conforms generally to the contract documents or will prejudice 
the integrity of the design concept of the completed project as a functioning whole as indicated in 
the contract documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any 
inspection, test or approval required to be made; and advise CONSULTANT of that part of work in 
progress that RPR believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for observation, 
or requires special testing, inspection or approval. 

 
9. Inspections, Tests, and System Startups: 

 
a. Consult with CONSULTANT in advance of scheduled major inspections, tests, and systems startups 

of important phases of the work. 
 
b. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and maintenance training are 

conducted in the presence of appropriate CLIENT’S personnel, and that Contractor maintains 
adequate records thereof. 

 
c. Observe, record, and report to CONSULTANT appropriate details relative to the test procedures and 

systems startups. 
 
d. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over the 

project, record the results of these inspections, and report to CONSULTANT. 
 

10. Records: 
 

a. Maintain at the site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, reproductions of original 
contract documents including all change orders, field orders, work change directives, addenda, 
additional drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the contract, CONSULTANT’S clarifications 
and interpretations of the contract documents, progress reports, shop drawing and sample submittals 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 14 of 15 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

received from and delivered to Contractor, and other project-related documents. 
 
b. Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or logbook, recording Contractor’s hours on the site, weather 

conditions, data relative to questions of change orders, field orders, work change directives, or changed 
conditions, site visitors, daily activities, decisions, observations in general, and specific observations 
in more detail as in the case of observing test procedures; and send copies to CONSULTANT. 

 
c. Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Contractors, subcontractors, and major 

suppliers of materials and equipment. 
 
d. Maintain records for use in preparing project documentation. 
 
e. Upon completion of the work, furnish original set of all RPR project documentation to CONSULTANT. 

 
11. Reports: 

 
a. Furnish to CONSULTANT periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of Contractor’s 

compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of shop drawing and sample submittals. 
 

b. Draft and recommend to CONSULTANT proposed change orders, work change directives, and field 
orders. Obtain backup material from Contractor. 
 

c. Furnish to CONSULTANT and CLIENT copies of all inspection, test, and system startup reports. 
  
d. Report immediately to CONSULTANT the occurrence of any site accidents, any hazardous environmental 

conditions, emergencies, or acts of God endangering the work, and property damaged by fire or other 
causes. 

 
12. Payment Requests: Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance with the established 

procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to CONSULTANT, noting particularly the 
relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values, work completed, and materials and 
equipment delivered at the site, but not incorporated in the work. 

 
13. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals: During the course of the work, verify that materials and 

equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and other data required by the specifications 
to be assembled and furnished by Contractor are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance 
with the contract documents, and have these documents delivered to CONSULTANT for review and forwarding 
to CLIENT prior to payment for that part of the work. 

 
14. Completion: 

 
a. Before CONSULTANT issues a certificate of substantial completion, submit to Contractor a list of 

observed items requiring completion or correction. 
 
b. Observe whether Contractor has arranged for inspections required by laws and regulations, including but 

not limited to, those to be performed by public agencies having jurisdiction over the work. 
 

c. Participate in a final inspection in the company of CONSULTANT, CLIENT, and Contractor and prepare a 
final list of items to be completed or corrected. 

 



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 15 of 16 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

d. Observe whether all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make recommendations to 
CONSULTANT concerning acceptance and issuance of the notice of acceptability of the work. 

 
D. Resident Project Representative shall not: 
 

1. Authorize any deviation from the contract documents or substitution of materials or equipment (including "or-
equal" items). 

 
2. Exceed limitations of CONSULTANT’S authority as set forth in the agreement or the contract documents. 
 
3. Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, subcontractors, suppliers, or Contractor’s superintendent. 
 
4. Advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, 

sequences or procedures of Contractor’s work unless such advice or directions are specifically required by 
the contract documents. 

 
5. Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over safety precautions and programs in connection 

with the activities or operations of CLIENT or Contractor. 
 
6. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by others except as 

specifically authorized by CONSULTANT. 
 
7. Accept shop drawing or sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor. 
 
8. Authorize CLIENT to occupy the project in whole or in part. 

 
 
  



Mayor Roquemore 
July 17, 2025 
Page 16 of 16 
 

https://cpak-my.sharepoint.com/personal/swaters_cityofauburn-ga_org/Documents/workshops/WORKSHOPS/2025/July 24th/9. Task order 

agreement.docx 

ATTACHMENT C 
FEE SCHEDULE 

EFFECTIVE January 1, 2024 
Hourly charge rates include salary/wage costs, fringe benefits, overhead costs, and profit margin. 

 
EMPLOYEE CATEGORY   HOURLY CHARGE RATE 
 
Engineer/Principal  ..........................................................................................................  160.00 
Engineer VI  ......................................................................................................................  150.00 
Engineer V  .......................................................................................................................  145.00 
Engineer IV  ......................................................................................................................  130.00 
Engineer III  ......................................................................................................................  115.00 
Engineer II  .......................................................................................................................  100.00 
Engineer I  ........................................................................................................................  95.00 
 

Land Planner/Principal  ...................................................................................................  150.00 
Land Planner V  ................................................................................................................  140.00 
Land Planner IV  ...............................................................................................................  135.00 
Land Planner III  ...............................................................................................................  110.00 
Land Planner II  ................................................................................................................  90.00 
Land Planner I  .................................................................................................................  80.00 
 

Designer III  ......................................................................................................................  85.00 
Designer II  .......................................................................................................................  75.00 
Designer I  ........................................................................................................................  67.00 
Environmental Specialist  .................................................................................................  80.00 
CADD Operator  ................................................................................................................  65.00 
Drafter III .........................................................................................................................  55.00 
Drafter II/Intern  ...............................................................................................................  50.00 
Project Coordinator  .........................................................................................................  80.00 
 

Construction Observer II  ..................................................................................................  90.00 
Construction Observer I  ...................................................................................................  70.00 
 

Surveyor/Principal  ..........................................................................................................  150.00 
Survey Supervisor II  .........................................................................................................  120.00 
Survey Supervisor I  ..........................................................................................................  110.00 
Survey Technician II  .........................................................................................................  95.00 
Survey Technician I  ..........................................................................................................  85.00 
Survey Party Chief III  ........................................................................................................  90.00 
Survey Party Chief II  .........................................................................................................  80.00 
Survey Party Chief I  ..........................................................................................................  70.00 
Survey Instrument Operator  .............................................................................................  60.00 
Survey Assistant  ..............................................................................................................  45.00 
Deed Research Specialist  ................................................................................................  68.00 
 

Senior Administrative Assistant  .......................................................................................  70.00 
Administrative Assistant II  ...............................................................................................  60.00 
Administrative Assistant I  ................................................................................................  48.00 
Repro Clerk  .....................................................................................................................  60.00 

 



AGENDA ITEM: 2 

TO: 

FROM:  

DATE: 

City of Auburn Mayor and City Council 

Sarah McQuade 
City Planner  

August 8, 2025 

PURPOSE: Seek approval of a final plat for a residential development in the 
RM-8: Residential Multifamily Apartment district, known as Kingston Cove.  

BACKGROUND: The applicant is requesting approval of a final plat for the 
Kingston Cove development. The construction of 182 town houses under collective 
ownership is proposed for the site.   

The item will be heard by the Planning Commission at a Special Called Meeting on 
July 23, 2025. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval. 

FUNDING: N/A 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



MEMO | Kingston Cove Final Plat Approval | 1 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
CITY OF AUBURN 
1 AUBURN WAY 

AUBURN, GA 30011 
PHONE: 770-963-4002 

www.cityofauburn-ga.org 

MEMORANDUM

TO: City of Auburn Mayor and City Council 

FROM:  Sarah McQuade, City Planner 

DATE: July 24, 2025 

RE: Kingston Cove Final Plat Approval 

Dear Mayor and Council, 

The applicant is requesting approval of a final plat for Kingston Cove pursuant to Title 16 – Development 

Regulations of the City of Auburn.  

PROPOSAL: 

The purpose of the final plat is to record the subdivision of Kingston Cove with the Barrow County Clerk of 

Court. Totaling 25.94 acres, Kingston Cove will consist of 182 collectively owned town houses. Once a final 

plat has been recorded, the applicant may begin vertical construction of the development. 

BACKGROUND / CURRENT ZONING: 

On May 2, 2012, the City of Auburn adopted an ordinance to rezone the subject site from AG: Agricultural 

to RM-8: Residential Multifamily Apartment District. On October 5, 2023, the City of Auburn and Starlight 

Homes Georgia, LLC, reached a development agreement regarding the subject site. The agreement includes 

the following stipulations: 

i. Elevations and relief for the townhomes depicted in the Revised Site Plan will be in substantial

conformity with the illustration attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference.

A combination of brick, fiber cement, cementitious siding, cementitious board and batten and

cementitious shake will be used for exterior construction. Vinyl siding will shall not be used.

ii. The internal streets reflected on the Revised Site Plan shall remain private and will not be dedicated

to the City.

http://www.cityofauburn-ga.org/
https://library.municode.com/ga/auburn/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT16DEREAU_CH16.20PRPLPLSP_16.20.070APFISUPL


MEMO | Kingston Cove Final Plat Approval | 2 

iii. ECP and Starlight will meet landscaping and buffer requirements within the City’s Development

Regulations, Chapter 16.44.

iv. The property, buildings and units shown on the Revised Site Plan will be owned by a common entity

during development and build out. Following site development, the developer entity will prepare

and record a final plat for the as-built development.  Individual developed units will then be

marketed and sold as fee simple townhomes, with the end user being conveyed the footprint of the

unit as shown on the final recorded plat.  Front yards and rear yards for the individual units will be

owned by an association with individual unit owners having use rights for the front and rear yards

in accordance with association declaration and covenants to be prepared and recorded for the

development (the Revised Site Plan and these stipulations i - iv are collectively referred to as the

“Proposed Development”).

Note: The internal streets are shown to be public on the submitted final plat, contrary to the requirements 

of stipulation ii above. The surveyor will revise the final plat to indicate private streets prior recording. 

ANALYSIS: 

Pursuant to Sec. 16.20.070 – Approval of Final Subdivision Plat, the approval of the final plat shall reflect 

the owner's certification that all site work and construction has been accomplished according to the 

terms of approved plans and permits, and that all facilities intended for maintenance, supervision and/or 

dedication to the public are in compliance with appropriate standards, regulations, codes and ordinances. 

• Sec. 16.20.070.A.2 states the city planner/engineer shall notify the applicant within thirty days of the

formal submittal of the final plat the date of the scheduled meetings of the city council of the city

which may consider the approval of the final plat, and shall indicate on a review copy of the final

plat or in a written memorandum all comments related to compliance of the final plat with these

regulations, the zoning ordinance, conditions of zoning approval, and the regulations of the city,

Barrow and/or Gwinnett County departments, and state agencies as appropriate. The city council

shall have final authority to determine the applicability of any and all comments under these

development regulations, the zoning ordinance or conditions of zoning approval.

o Staff has reviewed the final plat for compliance with the above-referenced regulations,
ordinances, and conditions of zoning, and found it to be complaint. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends Approval, with modification of the final plat for Kingston Cove, finding it to be 

compliant with all applicable agreements, codes, and ordinances upon revision to indicate the internal 

streets are private and not public.  

https://library.municode.com/ga/auburn/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT16DEREAU_CH16.20PRPLPLSP_16.20.070APFISUPL


msf1177
GH

msf1177
GH

msf1177
GH













AGENDA ITEM NO:   ____4________ 

TO: MAYOR & COUNCIL 

FROM:   Iris Akridge – Public Works Director 
Jim Aton – City Engineer 

DATE: July 24, 2025 

PURPOSE: Proposal for Annual Controls, SCADA, and Instrumentation Services 

BACKGROUND:  Global Control Servies Inc. (GCS) service agreement would ensure continued 
support for our water and wastewater systems through expert maintenance, troubleshooting, and 
optimization of SCADA and control systems. 

Global Control Systems has extensive experience working with municipal utilities and brings a strong 
understanding of regulatory requirements, automation standards, and system integration. 

Benefits to the City: 

• Maintain and improve operational reliability

• Supports regulatory compliance

• Ensures efficient automation and system monitoring

• Reduces downtime and unplanned maintenance

• Provides consistent technical support and timely response

The services proposed are essential to maintaining the city’s infrastructure and keeping our utility 
systems operating safely and efficiently. 

FUNDING: 

RECOMMENDATION: I respectfully submit this for your review and approval - Global Control 
Services Inc. (GCS) for annual Controls, SCADA and Instrumentation services in the amount of 
$10,800.  

Attachment: 

Proposal for Annual Controls, SCADA, and Instrumentation Services 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 

 CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel, III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



 

Proposal for Annual Controls, SCADA, and Instrumentation Services 
Submitted by: Global Control Systems, Inc. 
Date: June 23, 2025 

To: 

Iris Akridge 
Director of Public Works 
City of Auburn Water Plant 
1411 Sunbelt Way, Auburn, GA 30011 

Introduction 
Global Control Systems, Inc. (GCS) is pleased to present this proposal to provide annual 
Controls, SCADA, and Instrumentation services to the City of Auburn. With our extensive 
experience in municipal water and wastewater systems, we are committed to supporting the 
city’s operational reliability, regulatory compliance, and automation system efficiency. 

Scope of Services 
This proposal covers technical support, preventative maintenance, and general troubleshooting 
for the city’s SCADA systems, PLCs, instrumentation, and associated control hardware and 
software. Services include: 

1. SCADA system diagnostics and performance monitoring 

2. PLC logic support and control system tuning 

3. Instrument calibration, verification, and replacement recommendations 

4. Alarm and event log review and optimization 

5. Backup and verification of PLC/SCADA project files 

6. Field troubleshooting of I/O and communication issues 

7. General operational support and recommendations 

Service Structure 
Scheduled Site Visits 

8. Global Control Systems provides up to six (6) pre-scheduled site visits annually. 

9. Each visit will include up to 8 hours (including travel time), conducted by 
qualified technicians or engineers. 

10. Work will be coordinated in advance to prioritize service tasks, align with system 
operations, and ensure efficient use of time on-site. 

 
www.globalcontrolsystems.com 

 

http://www.globalcontrolsystems.com/


 

Remote and In-House Support 

A. In addition to scheduled visits, GCS will provide remote and in-house technical support in 
response to customer-initiated requests. 

B. Telephone or remote support services are billed in 2-hour minimum increments. 

C. Any remote/in-house support provided will be counted against the total of six (6) 
included service visits, with a minimum of 2 hours deducted per call. 

Annual Fee Structure 
The total cost for the annual services described above is: 

$10,800.00 

This includes: 

D. Up to six (6) on-site service visits 

E. Remote support (as defined above, deducted from the included hours) 

F. Travel expenses and mileage for scheduled visits 

Additional On-Site Services: 
If additional on-site support is requested beyond the six scheduled visits, services will be billed 
at our standard hourly rate of $225 with a 4-hour minimum per visit. 

Emergency after-hours services: 2 times the standard hourly rate. 

Notes 

G. No material hardware or software is included in this contract, not limited to upgrades. 

H. The service agreement is valid for one year from the date of execution. 

I. Site visit scheduling must be coordinated at least two weeks in advance. 

J. Emergency or expedited site support outside the defined visit schedule is subject to 
availability and additional billing. 

K. Unused hours or visits do not carry over into the following contract year. 

Value to the City 

By partnering with Global Control Systems, the City of Auburn receives: 

L. Dedicated and reliable technical support 

M. Reduced downtime and quicker resolution of system issues 

N. Proactive maintenance and long-term system performance improvements 

O. A predictable support structure that helps manage maintenance budgets 
 

www.globalcontrolsystems.com 

 

http://www.globalcontrolsystems.com/


 
 

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal to you and look forward to working with you on 
this project. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Sincerely, 

Global Control Systems Inc. 

Rakesh Patel 

Annual Contract Authorization 
To proceed with the proposed services, please sign below: 

Authorized Representative – City of Auburn 

 
Signature:                           Print:                

 

Title:                             Date:                

Accepted by – Global Control Systems, Inc. 

 
Signature:                           Print:                

 

Title:                             Date:                
 

www.globalcontrolsystems.com 

http://www.globalcontrolsystems.com/


 

 
 
Pricing and Validity 
 

Standard Terms & Conditions 
 

4. All prices quoted are in United States Dollars (USD). 

5. Quoted prices are valid for thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the proposal. 

6. Pricing is exclusive of taxes, duties, permits, or any other governmental fees unless otherwise stated. 

Payment Terms 

7. Invoices are due 30 days net from the invoice date, unless otherwise agreed upon in writing. 

8. Late payments may incur interest at 1.5% per month (18% annually) or the maximum allowed by law, 
whichever is lower. 

9. Partial payments and milestone billing will be applied for projects or extended services as stated in the 
proposal. 

Delivery and Lead Times 

10. Delivery and/or project initiation will commence upon receipt of a purchase order (PO) or signed 
agreement, along with any required initial payment or deposit. 

11. Standard delivery or service lead times will be defined within the proposal and are subject to change 
based on the current workload and material availability. 

12. Delays caused by force majeure, supplier delays, or client-side approvals may extend delivery timelines. 

Warranty 

13. A one (1) year warranty is provided on all hardware supplied and labor performed under this agreement. 

14. The warranty covers defects in materials and workmanship under regular use and conditions. 

15. Warranty does not cover misuse, abuse, unauthorized modifications, or damage caused by third-party 
equipment or systems. 

Ownership and Risk 

16. Title to hardware shall be transferred to the client upon full payment. 

17. The risk of loss or damage to goods passes to the client upon delivery to the site or the designated 
shipping address. 

Changes and Cancellations 

18. Any change in scope, quantity, or timeline after proposal acceptance may require a change order and may 
impact pricing and delivery. 

19. Cancellations after acceptance may incur charges for work performed, materials ordered, and restocking 
fees if applicable. 

Limitation of Liability 

20. In no event shall the supplier be liable for indirect, incidental, special, or consequential damages, 
including but not limited to lost profits or downtime. 

21. Total liability for any claim shall not exceed the total amount paid for the specific goods or services giving 
rise to the claim. 



Governing Law 

22. These Terms and Conditions shall be governed by the laws of the State of Georgia, without regard to its 
conflict of law provisions. 

 
www.globalcontrolsystems.com 

 

http://www.globalcontrolsystems.com/


AGENDA ITEM NO:   ____5________ 

TO:  MAYOR & COUNCIL 

FROM:   Iris Akridge – Public Works Director 

DATE:  August 14, 2025 

PURPOSE: Budget Amendment to Over Unanticipated Labor Cost 

BACKGROUND:   The Kubota machine is important for grounds maintenance, field operations, 
equipment transport and water leaks – everything in the department. 

While working on the injectors, the technician found they were located deep inside the engine. To 
reach the injectors, the technician had to remove several parts like the valve covers and intake 
system. This took more time than expected and added extra labor to the repair. 

The original budget did not expect this level of labor involvement, and no contingency funds are 
available in the current fiscal allocation. I would like to request a budget amendment to cover 
unanticipated labor costs associated with the repair of fuel injectors on the Kubota machine. The 
current budget does not include sufficient funds to address the increased labor hours required for 
this repair. 

Cost Breakdown 

Item Description Estimated Cost 
Labor Costs Additional hours for injector repair  $135@10.20 Hrs./ $1,377.00 

Parts (Injectors) Previously approved or covered  $962.03@ 4 KT/ $3,848.12 

Total Additional Request Labor-related amendment only $5,225.12 

FUNDING: 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval is respectfully requested for a budget amendment to allocate an 
additional $5,224.12 to the Repair & Maintenance – Equipment line items in both the Water and 
Roadways departments. This adjustment is necessary to cover increased labor costs associated with 
Kubota injector repairs, which exceeded initial estimates. 

The proposed amendment would update the following budget line items to reflect the additional 
expenditure: 

• Roadways: Line item 100-4220-52-2220

• Water: Line item 505-4400-52-2220

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 

 CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel, III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 

mailto:$135@10.20
mailto:$962.03@%204


The additional funding will be sourced evenly from the General Fund and the Water Fund, ensuring 
that departmental operations continue without disruption and that essential equipment remains in 
serviceable condition. 

 

 
 

Attachment: 

Gene and Matt Tractor Sales - Kubota Invoice 




	CITY OF AUBURN
	July 24, 2025
	6:00 PM

	NEW BUSINESS
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks
	6. Civility cover letter.pdf
	MAYOR
	Richard E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael Parks


	5. Proposal for Annual Controls.pdf
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	Michael E. Parks

	Proposal for Annual Controls, SCADA, and Instrumentation Services
	Introduction
	Scope of Services
	Service Structure
	Annual Fee Structure
	Annual Contract Authorization

	AGENDA July 24, 2025.pdf
	CITY OF AUBURN
	July 24, 2025
	6:00 PM

	NEW BUSINESS
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks

	AGENDA July 24, 2025.pdf
	CITY OF AUBURN
	July 24, 2025
	6:00 PM

	NEW BUSINESS
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks

	8. C&S Agreement Coversheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	9. Task order Cover sheet (2).pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	9. Task order agreement.pdf
	RE:  Task Order 41
	Rock Creek Intake #2 and Pipelines, Phase B, Construction Phase Services
	Auburn Water Supply and Storage Project
	Hussey Gay Bell Project No.: 25-0016-WS
	Construction Phase Services Summary is presented below with a detailed list of services presented in ATTACHMENTS A and B.
	15. Contractor’s Completion Documents.

	A2.01 Additional Services Requiring CLIENT’S Authorization in Advance
	A2.02 Required Additional Services
	10. Records:
	11. Reports:
	14. Completion:


	1. 01 RZ25-0001 Cornerstone rzn CC Cover Sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Richard E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	1. 01 RZ25-0001 Cornerstone Agenda Packet.pdf
	RZ25-0001 Cornerstone City Council Staff Report.pdf
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	SUMMARY
	LAND USE AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ANALYSIS
	The submitted rezoning proposal represents an increase in site development intensity. Any present agricultural uses would be eliminated in place of higher density single-family residences. If the proposal is approved, the residential density of the si...
	Pursuant to the City of Auburn Comprehensive Plan, 2023-2028, the development site is located within the Agricultural Character Area. This Area is intended for “agriculture and very low-density residential development. Ensures that open and/or sparsel...
	The present land use, very low-density residential and agricultural, aligns with the intent of the subject Character Area. However, the proposed Planned Unit Development does not conform to the Character Area intent, due to the increased residential d...
	The subject site partially abuts unincorporated Barrow County to the south, west, and east. The abutting parcels are designated by the County as Traditional Neighborhood, which is intended for “quality infill development” consisting of single-family, ...
	WETLANDS, STREAMS, AND FLOODPLAIN
	The development site does not contain wetlands, streams, or floodplains.
	DEVELOPMENT REVIEW
	The development shall be subject to the regulations described in the Auburn Municipal Code, unless relief has been explicitly granted as part of this application, and apply to and provide guidance for the development of lands within the incorporated a...
	Approval of an erosion control plan from the Georgia Soil and Water Conservation Commission is required prior to land disturbance activity.
	Approval of site plans from Barrow County Fire Marshal required.
	The submitted concept plan depicts a proposed monument sign. All signage is subject to review and permitting by the City pursuant to Title 17, Chapter 17.120 – Signs, and other applicable regulations. The approval of the subject rezoning request does ...
	TRANSPORTATION
	The Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) does not maintain traffic counts for Apalachee Church Road or McCully Drive.
	A traffic study has not been provided as part of this rezoning request. Staff has not requested a traffic study as the proposed unit count (40 dwellings) is not anticipated to cause significant traffic impacts.
	ZONING ANALYSIS
	(1) Sec. 17.90.140.D – Minimum Standards and Requirements.
	All proposed PUD: Planned Unit Development district applications shall conform to the following specific requirements:
	(Language in bold is from the City of Auburn Zoning Ordinance. Bulleted information that is not bolded are factors known to staff that may apply to the Ordinance criteria.)
	1. The maximum density shall not exceed three (3.0) dwelling units per gross acre.
	a. The residential density of the proposed development is 2.99 dwelling units per acre.
	2. The site shall abut public streets for a distance of at least one hundred (100) linear feet.
	a. The site abuts public streets for a distance of 1,361 linear feet (0.258 miles).
	3. A registered engineer, architect, land surveyor or landscape architect shall prepare the plans required for inclusion in an application. The plans shall have their official registration seal.
	a. The application includes a concept plan, but it’s not stamped nor sealed by a required professional.
	i. Professional stamped and/or sealed plans shall be required prior to development commencement.
	4. Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of all streets within a PUD. The construction standard of the required sidewalks are given in the city development regulations; however, the minimum width of all sidewalk along streets shall be five (5.0...
	a. Sidewalks five (5) feet in width are proposed along both sides of all proposed internal streets.
	5. The site proposed for a PUD classification shall have a contiguous area of not less than ten (10) acres.
	a. The subject assemblage measures 13.39 +/- acres.
	(2) Sec. 17.170.130 – Standards governing exercise of the zoning power
	The city council finds that the following standards are relevant in balancing the interest in promoting the public health, safety, morality or general welfare against the right to the unrestricted use of property and shall govern the exercise of the z...
	(Language in bold is from the City of Auburn Zoning Ordinance. Bulleted information that is not bolded are factors known to staff that may apply to the Ordinance criteria.)
	A. Whether a proposed rezoning will permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and development of adjacent and nearby property;
	a. The local area is characterized by single-family residential development of varying densities in addition to commercial development.
	i. The proposed rezoning would permit detached, single-family residential development consistent with nearby properties.
	B. Whether a proposed rezoning will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby property;
	a. Staff does not anticipate any adverse effects on nearby properties as a result of the rezoning proposal.
	b. An access easement to the existing telecommunications tower will be maintained as shown on the concept plan.
	C. Whether the property to be affected by a proposed rezoning has a reasonable economic use as currently zoned;
	a. As currently zoned (AG: Agricultural), the site is used agriculturally and residentially.
	D. Whether the proposed rezoning will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities or schools;
	a. Staff does not anticipate burdensome use of local infrastructure or facilities as a result of the rezoning proposal.
	E. Whether the proposed rezoning is in conformity with the policy and intent of the land use plan; and
	a. The proposed rezoning does not conform with the Comprehensive Plan’s intent for the site.
	i. The site is located in the Agricultural Character Area, intended for agricultural and very low-density residential development. This description fits the current site configuration.
	ii. Developing the site as proposed would detract from the Agricultural intent as determined by the Comprehensive Plan, due to increased residential density and reduced open space.
	b. The Agricultural Character Area is not common in the subject locality; all abutting parcels in the City are designated for commercial future land use. The addition of single family detached residential units will support commercial development envi...
	F. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the proposed rezoning.
	a. Staff is not aware of any changing conditions which would inherently support approval or disapproval of the subject rezoning request.
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION
	Staff recommends approval with conditions of subject rezoning request RZ25-0001, as the proposal aligns with City regulations and local land use patterns. Staff recommends the following conditions be adopted as part of the approval:
	2. A continuous landscaped strip, no less than ten (10) feet in depth, shall be established parallel to the entirety of the McCully Drive frontage.
	3. Prior to the issuance of a Land Disturbance Permit (LDP) for the construction of any street not ending in a cul-de-sac, formal waivers shall be obtained to allow for the construction of dead-end “stub” streets and driveways from dead-end street seg...
	4. The approval of this rezoning request shall not constitute automatic approval of the construction of any street that does not end in a cul-de-sac, nor the installation of any access provisions or driveways from a dead-end segment of any street.
	5. The final plat submitted for recordation of the subject development shall bear a statement notifying land purchasers that the property described therein is proximate to a preexisting telecommunications tower, and that a structural failure of the to...
	a. All grounds, including recreation areas and common areas.
	b. Stormwater detention infrastructure maintenance.
	c. Fence, wall, and sign maintenance.
	8. Natural vegetation shall remain on the property until the issuance of a development permit.
	9. Underground utilities shall be provided throughout the development, except for the existing telecommunications tower and directly related infrastructure.


	02 VWSE25-0002 Cornerstone Memo CC Cover Sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Richard E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	02 Cornerstone Waiver Agenda Packet.pdf
	2952_001.pdf
	Pages from Final Application Package - 21 Apalachee Church Rd.-2.pdf
	Pages from Final Application Package - 21 Apalachee Church Rd.-3.pdf
	Pages from Final Application Package - 21 Apalachee Church Rd.-4.pdf
	LOI - Cornerstone Home Builders_v3.pdf
	Cornerstone Waivers City Council MEMO .pdf
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

	Cornerstone Waivers City Council MEMO .pdf
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT


	03 6th St & 6th Ave OAR CC Cover Sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Richard E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	03 0 6th Street ADOD Review Agenda Packet.pdf
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	PROJECT SUMMARY:
	SITE HISTORY:
	DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMENTS:
	LIVABLE CENTERS INITIATIVE STUDY, 2020 (LCI):
	The development site is located within the area studied in the City’s 2020 Livable Centers Initiative (LCI) Plan, which serves as a policy guide for future development in the City core, including the subject site. While the LCI is not a regulatory doc...
	The LCI concept plan (pg. 77) suggests the subject site be split between retail (north) and townhouse development (south). More specifically, the area is highlighted as key opportunity 19.a (pgs. 84-85), which envisions “infill-townhouses (zero lot li...
	While not in violation of zoning regulations, the current proposal, of one townhouse building without the incorporation of retail, trail infrastructure, or on-street parking, does not align with the intent of the LCI concept plan and recommendations o...
	DEPARTMENT ANALYSIS:
	The subject proposal is for the development 0.59 +/- acres of a larger 2.02 +/- acre parcel containing one building of six (6) townhomes. The programming for the remaining 1.43 +/- is unknown. Attached single-family housing is a permitted land use in ...
	As part of the required application materials, the applicant has included a project narrative, conceptual plan, elevation drawings and exterior finish materials selections. The submitted elevation drawings are incomplete as they do not provide elevati...
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:
	TP2333 6TH St - Tract 1 OP 2024-03-11 rev.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Tree Protection Plan


	TP2333 6TH St - Tract 1 OP 2024-03-11 rev.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Tree Protection Plan


	TP2333 Auburn DT Tree References 2023-06-29.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	0 6th Street ADOD Review Staff Report.pdf
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	PROJECT SUMMARY:
	SITE HISTORY:
	DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMENTS:
	LIVABLE CENTERS INITIATIVE STUDY, 2020 (LCI):
	The development site is located within the area studied in the City’s 2020 Livable Centers Initiative (LCI) Plan, which serves as a policy guide for future development in the City core, including the subject site. While the LCI is not a regulatory doc...
	The LCI concept plan (pg. 77) suggests the subject site be split between retail (north) and townhouse development (south). More specifically, the area is highlighted as key opportunity 19.a (pgs. 84-85), which envisions “infill-townhouses (zero lot li...
	While not in violation of zoning regulations, the current proposal, of one townhouse building without the incorporation of retail, trail infrastructure, or on-street parking, does not align with the intent of the LCI concept plan and recommendations o...
	DEPARTMENT ANALYSIS:
	The subject proposal is for the development 0.59 +/- acres of a larger 2.02 +/- acre parcel containing one building of six (6) townhomes. The programming for the remaining 1.43 +/- is unknown. Attached single-family housing is a permitted land use in ...
	As part of the required application materials, the applicant has included a project narrative, conceptual plan, elevation drawings and exterior finish materials selections. The submitted elevation drawings are incomplete as they do not provide elevati...
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:


	04 Kingston Cove FP CC Cover Sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Richard E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	August 14 2025 Council Business Meeting Agenda.pdf
	CITY OF AUBURN
	August 14, 2025
	6:00 PM

	PUBLIC HEARING
	NEW BUSINESS
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks

	July 10 2025 Business Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Council Reports and Announcements
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks

	Second: By Council Member Rowan.

	Pre Budget Workshop August 4 2025.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	Iris- Budget Amendment for Over Unanticipated Labor Cost of Kubota.pdf
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	Michael E. Parks


	July 10 2025 Business Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Council Reports and Announcements
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks

	Second: By Council Member Rowan.

	July 10 2025 Business Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Council Reports and Announcements
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks

	Second: By Council Member Rowan.




